
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 4 October 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

Tuesday, 12 October 2021 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Cabinet 
Members: 

 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Barry Dobson, The Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Property 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 
 

Agenda 
 

1.   Register of attendance and apologies for absence  
   

2.   Disclosure of Interests (if any)  
   

3.   Minutes of the previous meeting 14 September 2021 (Pages 3 - 9) 
   

3.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public 
may be excluded from the meeting during any listed items of business, on the 
grounds that if they were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to 
them as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

   
3.   Exempt minute of the meeting held on 14 September 2021 (Pages 11 - 13) 

   
 Items for Cabinet Decision: Key 

 
4.   Bourne Special Expense Area 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources. 
(Pages 15 - 24) 

Cabinet 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

   
 Items for Cabinet Decision: Non-Key 

 
5.   Statement of Community Involvement 2021 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy 
(Pages 25 - 92) 

   
6.   Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview and Scrutiny Committees  

   
 Items for information 

 
7.   Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers  

   
8.   Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 93 - 98) 

   



 

 

Minutes 
Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 14 September 2021 – 14:00 
  

Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 
The Leader: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman) 
The Deputy Leader: Councillor Barry Dobson, Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-
Chairman) 
  
Cabinet Members present  
  
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 
 
Non-Cabinet Members present 
 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
 
Officers in attendance  

 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive)  
Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing and Property)  
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Gary Smith (Strategic Director of Commercial and Operations)  
Ken Lyon (Assistant Chief Executive)  
Richard Wyles (Assistant Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer)  
Emma Whittaker (Assistant Director of Planning)  
Graham Watts (Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer)  
Claire Moses (Head of Revenues and Benefits) 
Debbie Roberts (Interim Organisational Development and Change Manager) 
 

 
23. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Annie Mason and Robert 
Reid. 
 
24. Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 July 2021 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2021 were agreed as a correct record of 
the decisions taken. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

25. Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting held on 17 August 2021 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 August 2021 were agreed as a correct record 
of the decisions taken. 
 
26. Disclosure of Interests (if any) 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 
27. Statement of Community Involvement 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To approve the Council’s updated version of the Statement of Community 
Involvement which had been amended to take into account recent legislative 
changes and in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Decision 
 
That the revised Statement of Community Involvement, incorporating changes in 
legislation, the recent Covid-19 pandemic and findings from a six week public 
consultation on the proposed changes to the document, be approved. 
 
Other options considered and rejected 
 
None. 
 
Reason for the decision 
 
The Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy presented the report which 
set out the requirement of the Council to produce a Statement of Community 
Involvement in accordance with Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. It was noted that the purpose of the Statement was to set out 
how the Council would engage with communities who had an interest in matters 
relating to development in their areas. Specifically it set out information on when, who 
with and how the Council would consult in respect of planning, listed buildings and 
other types of applications together with the drafting of planning documents. The 
Statement also outlined the techniques available and likely to be used during 
consultation, ensuring that a degree of flexibility was maintained so that methods 
could be appropriately tailored. 
 
A six week public consultation on the draft revised Statement of Community 
Involvement, reflecting changes in legislation and the recent Covid-19 pandemic, was 
undertaken between 5 February 2021 and 16 March 2021. There was no statutory 
obligation to undertake this consultation, but it was good practice to do so. 24 
comments had been received from various consultees, including both statutory and 
non-statutory consultees. As a result of comments received, the document had been 
refined and the key findings from the consultation were set out in Appendix 2 of the 
report. 
 

4



 

 

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy placed on record his thanks to 
the team in compiling the revised Statement. 
 
28. Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To provide Cabinet with an opportunity to review the Council’s Localised Council Tax 
Support Scheme in advance of the 2022/23 financial year. 
 
Decision 
 
That Cabinet approves the commencement of the consultation for the 2022/23 
Localised Council Tax Support Scheme on a ‘no-change’ basis and to consider the 
outcome of the consultation findings prior to making a recommendation for the final 
scheme to Council. 
 
Other options considered and rejected 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected were set out in the reports presented to 
the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 29 June 2021 and 20 July 2021. 
 
Reason for the decision 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources presented a report which set out 
the background associated with Localised Council Tax Support Schemes and the 
scheme that was currently in place at South Kesteven District Council. 
 
The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee considered a report at its meeting on 29 June 2021 which set out a 
comprehensive overview of the current scheme, the ongoing challenges that the 
pandemic had placed upon caseload volumes and the general direction of demand. 
The report also set out a range of changes that could be made to the scheme having 
regard to the relevant financial impact on both the Council and claimant. At that 
meeting the Committee requested specific modelling be undertaken, the findings of 
which were presented to the Committee’s meeting held on 20 July 2021.  
 
The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee carefully considered all of the options and it recommended that the 
2022/23 scheme remained unchanged due to the ongoing volatility to caseloads and 
the wider consideration of the economic recovery and the impact once the furlough 
scheme had ceased. 
 
During discussion it was noted that South Kesteven District Council’s Localised 
Council Tax Support Scheme remained one of the most generous schemes in the 
county. It was noted that extensive consultation would be undertaken on the 
Council’s proposals in relation to its scheme for 2022/23 with residents, Parish and 
Town Councils, Citizens Advice and other key stakeholders. 
 

5



 

 

29. Finance Update Report: April - July 2021 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To inform Cabinet of the Council’s forecast 2021/22 financial position as at the end of 
July 2021, covering the general fund revenue budget, housing revenue account 
budget and capital programmes associated with the general fund and housing 
revenue account. 
 
Decision 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
(1) Notes the forecast 2021/22 outturn position for the general fund and housing 

revenue account revenue and capital budgets as at the end of July 2021. 
 

(2) Agrees to receive further finance monitoring reports during the year in order to 
provide ongoing updates with respect to the projected outturn position. 
 

(3) Notes the allocation criteria of the Covid recovery reserve, the use of which 
had been delegated to the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources. 

 
Other options considered and rejected 
 
None. 
 
Reason for decision 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources presented a report which confirmed 
the following information relating to the Council’s revenue and capital budgets: 
 

• the general fund, taking into account approval of budget carry forwards, was 
noted as a net cost of service budget equating to £19.378 million as set out in 
table 1 of the report; 

• a deficit as at 31 July 2021 was forecast as £1.022 million and was mainly as 
a result of reduced levels of income from specific service areas, the reduced 
forecast of procurement and process automation efficiencies and removal of 
the salary vacancy forecasts; 

• the general fund capital programme equated to £4.085 million. The outturn 
position as at 31 July 2021 was set out in table 6 of the report; 

• the housing revenue account revenue budget was £5.435 million and the 
budgeted surplus was fully utilised to fund future investment in stock growth 
and property maintenance. The summary of movements associated with this 
were highlighted in table 7 of the report, with the outturn position set out at 
table 8; 

• the housing revenue account capital programme was £22.716 million, with 
table 7 of the report showing the summary of movements. The forecast outturn 
position was set out at table 10. 

 

6



 

 

The Leader of the Council acknowledged the forecast £1 million deficit and 
highlighted that there would be difficult decisions for the Council to take, but that this 
was reflective in local government nationally. In terms of key areas of income for the 
authority, these would continue to be monitored and reviewed. 
 
During discussion a comment was made that despite the challenges faced by the 
authority in the previous 18 months, the Council’s teams had worked very well in 
continuing to deliver services. It could be that positive variances occurred throughout 
the year given that there was a lot of the year to go yet. It was therefore anticipated 
that the Council may be in a better position by the end of the year, noting, however, 
the projected deficit position set out in the report. 
 
30. Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers 
 
Cabinet noted the Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under delegated powers since 
the previous meeting. 
 
31. Cabinet Forward Plan 
 
Cabinet noted the contents of its Forward Plan for the period 1 September 2021 – 30 
June 2022. 
 
It was agreed that the item entitled ‘proposed development brief for land at Stamford 
North’ be deferred as a result of Rutland County Council’s withdrawal of its Local 
Plan. 
 
Cabinet noted that the following items would be added to the Forward Plan: 
 

• Bourne Special Expense Area – 12 October 2021 
 

• Stamford Special Expense Area – 9 November 2021 
 
32. Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees 
 
The following item of business was referred by the Culture and Visitor Economy 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
33. Exempt Items 
 
34. Arts, Culture and Events Service - Service Review and Staffing 

Restructure 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To provide Cabinet with an opportunity to review the proposed staffing restructure of 
the Arts, Culture and Events Service to realise immediate savings. 
 
 
 

7



 

 

Decision 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
(1) Agrees to implement option 2, as set out in the report, as a proposed staffing 

restructure for the Arts, Culture and Events Service. 
 

(2) Agrees that the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources be asked to 
authorise the use of the Council’s invest to save reserve in order to financially 
support the implementation of the revised staffing structure, with the amount 
required being determined by the final costings and agreed with the Chief 
Executive and Section 151 Officer. 

 
Other options considered and rejected 
 
Other options considered and rejected in relation to proposed staffing structures were 
set out in the report and exempt appendices. 
 
Reason for decision 
 
The Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy presented a report which 
outlined the outcome of an independent review of the Arts, Culture and Events 
Service. It had been highlighted that the service currently required a subsidy of 11% 
of the Council’s budget, with approximately £1 million spent on staffing. She made it 
clear, however, that there continued to be a great desire to continue to develop the 
Council’s programmes in relation to art, culture and events. 
 
Feedback from the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
Cabinet and other elected Members, as well as that from other key stakeholders, had 
been considered to help understand what a reasonable staffing solution may consist 
of. 
 
A special meeting of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 3 August 2021 considered the final copy of the independent 
review report into the Arts, Culture and Events Service. Further information in relation 
to the financial implications of those staff affected by proposed new operating 
structures was considered at a meeting of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 8 September 2021 where it agreed to: 
 

- Recommended option 2 as a specific staffing restructure for the Arts, Culture 
and Events Service to Cabinet for approval. 

- Review the three centres (Bourne, Grantham and Stamford), with a view to 
determining a future operating model to enable the Council to decide on the 
direction of the Arts, Culture and Events Service in terms of objectives, who to 
target and the development of key performance indicators. 

- For officers to return to the Committee during the next year with more detail 
regarding the different ways the Arts, Culture and Events Services could be 
delivered in the future. 
 

8



 

 

- At the appropriate time, support the preparation of an amended Arts and 
Culture Strategy to clarify exactly what it was the Council wished to achieve. 

 
The Leader of the Council reiterated that arts and culture were a vital part of what 
South Kesteven District Council delivered as an authority and was recognised as a 
priority. He made it clear that none of the arts centres in South Kesteven were at risk 
of closure as they were so important to the communities where they were located. 
Some of the buildings in particular were extremely historic and there was a 
commitment to continue preserving them alongside delivering these services. 
 
At this stage of the meeting it was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that if they were to be present exempt 
information could be disclosed to them as defined in the relevant paragraphs of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
Cabinet considered Appendix 2 of the report, which set out proposed options for 
staffing restructures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

11

Agenda Item 3b
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 
12 October 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources  

           

 

Bourne Special Expense Area 

Cabinet is asked to recommend the transfer the assets currently being charged to the Bourne 
Special Expense Area to Bourne Town Council thus removing the requirement for the Bourne 
Special Expense Area to continue. 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles (Assistant Director of Finance) 

 
01476 406210 

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Key All Bourne Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright (Head of Finance) 27 September 2021 

Approved by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 28 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

28 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Cabinet is asked to approve the freehold transfer of Recreation Ground Bourne and 
Dyke Playing Field to Bourne Town Council, subject to the disposal requirements 
in accordance with Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

2. Cabinet is asked to approve the transfer date from 1 April 2022 thus removing the 
Bourne Special Expense Area. 

3. Cabinet is asked to approve the transfer of the balance of the Bourne Special 
Expense Reserve to Bourne Town Council upon completion of the asset transfer. 

 

15

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 A provision of the Local Government Act 1992 (section 34 and 35) allows Councils to 

classify by resolution, certain expenditure and income as “special” rather than general, 

indicating that the related tax burden is chargeable against a part rather than the whole of 

the Council’s area. 

1.2 A Special Expense Area (SEA) has a separate tax levy similar to a parish/town council 

precept. It relates to expenses that in other locations within the district are picked up by 

the parish/town council e.g. playing fields, cemeteries. 

1.3 SEA’s are created to avoid “double taxation” where a resident of South Kesteven would 

pay for facilities in their own parish (via their parish precept) and also pay towards another 

facility in another parish through the District Council precept. 

1.4 The District currently has four special expense areas following the cessation of the 

Deepings SEA with effect from 1 April 2021: 

(a) Grantham SEA 

(b) Stamford SEA 

(c) Bourne SEA 

(d) Langtoft SEA 

1.5 At each annual budget setting, the costs directly associated with each of the parish areas 

defined above are charged accordingly.  The overall budget costs are then allocated to 

each of the hereditaments contained in each parish (as defined by the parish boundary) 

and charged depending upon their Council Tax banding. 

1.6 As stated above the budgets that are charged to each parish are allocated based on the 

guiding principles of whether the cost/function/activity would ordinarily be undertaken by a 

parish/town council in that area.  In the case of Grantham, the existence of the SEA is 

more obvious as there is no Town Council and therefore the District Council delivers and 

funds a number of activities in that area.   

1.7 The overriding principle, as set out in the prevailing legislation, is that functions that are 

carried out by the District Council only in part of its area that would otherwise be carried 

out by the parish and town council are charged to that local area.  It should be noted that 

the SEA charge forms part of the overall Band D increase calculation so the increases in 

each respective SEA contribute towards the overall SKDC Band D charge. 

1.8 Discussions have taken place with representatives of Bourne Town Council who have 

formally requested that the assets currently owned by the District Council (and which are 

charged to the Bourne SEA) are transferred over to the Town Council at a nominal £1 

consideration.  From the point of transfer the ongoing responsibility and maintenance of 

the assets will be with the Town Council who will precept the charge accordingly to the 

residents of Bourne.   

1.9 The proposed freehold transfer will be based on current prevailing conditions (sold as 

seen) and will include restrictive covenants and active prohibitions to ensure the assets 

continue to be used as open space.  There is a current lease in place between the Council 

and the Bourne Town Juniors Football Club (until 2030) and the lease would pass onto 

Bourne Town Council upon land transfer. 

 

16



 

 
 

1.10 A summary of the costs being charged to each of the assets is shown below: 

Bourne Recreation Ground 

Heading 2021/22 Budget 

£ 

Commentary 

Grounds Maintenance 12,900 Contract payment to 
EnvironmentSK Ltd 

Play equipment 
maintenance 

800 Annual inspection 
and maintenance 
programme 

Pitches – letting income and 
rents 

(2,200) Income received from 
activities on 
Recreation Ground 

Total Budget 11,500  
 

Dyke Playing Field 
 

Heading 
2021/22 Budget 

£ 

Commentary 

Grounds Maintenance 2,350 Contract payment to 
EnvironmentSK Ltd 

Play equipment 
maintenance 

1,500 Annual inspection 
and maintenance 
programme 

Total Budget 3,850  

 

1.11 Should the transfer proceed then the costs referred to above will be a saving to the 

Council as it will no longer be required to budget for them.  This will provide a modest 

saving to the Council and the costs will be removed from the budget setting proposals 

from 2022/23 onwards. There will be a requirement to remove the value of the assets from 

the Council’s balance sheet once the transfer has been completed. 

1.12 Over a period of years, the Council has built up a reserve to support the SEA in the event 

of unforeseen or planned expenditure coming forward that cannot be met from the annual 

Council Tax receipts.  The forecast balance for the reserve is £32,000 as at 31 March 

2022.  This reserve would be passed over to Bourne Town Council in the event that the 

SEA is abolished and can then be used to support ongoing investment in the two sites.   

1.13 The assets considered for transfer will comprise Public Open Space and therefore a 

proposal to dispose of the freehold will need to be advertised in accordance with s123 of 

the Local Government Act 1972 (LGA). Any representations received from this 21 day 

consultation period will need to be considered.  

1.14 Transfers of these assets to Bourne Town Council will need to satisfy the best value 

provisions of the LGA and accordingly, the Council will therefore need to demonstrate that 

17



 

 
 

best value has been obtained or that the transfer helps to secure the economic social or 

environmental well-being of its area. The proposal is that disposals should be at nominal 

consideration of £1. This may amount to an undervalue against a strict ‘open market’ 

valuation of the asset, however, the Council has the benefit of a general consent from the 

Secretary of State for such disposals if the undervalue is less than £2million (which it will 

be in these cases) and the proposal contributes to promoting economic, social or 

environmental wellbeing in its area. It is considered that placing ownership and 

maintenance of this sort of asset in the hands of the local community through its Town 

Council is justifiable as contributing to social and environmental wellbeing. 

1.15 It is proposed that both parties will meet their own respective legal costs associated with 

the transfer. 

1.16 At Appendix A are the land registry plans reflecting the Council's registered titles for each 

of the locations. Bourne Recreation ground forms part of a larger area owned by the Council 

under title number LL157898; however it is only the Recreation Ground itself outlined in blue 

on the attached plan which is proposed to be transferred to Bourne Town Council.  The 

exact area and specific boundaries of each site will be finalised following site inspections 

prior to the legal transfers being effected.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1  The proposal has been considered at the meeting of the Finance, Economic Development 

and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7 September 2021 and the 

proposal to transfer SEA assets to each respective parish /town council was supported. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Transfer the Bourne Recreation Ground and Dyke Playing Field open space assets and 

the credit balance held in the SEA reserve for Bourne to Bourne Town Council together 

with the responsibility to manage and maintain these sites. The Council would therefore 

have no ongoing management or maintenance liabilities in respect of these sites and 

would no longer charge special expenses for these areas of land.  

3.2 Do not transfer the Bourne Recreation Ground and Dyke Playing Field open space assets 

and the credit balance held in the SEA reserve for Bourne to Bourne Town Council. The 

assets would remain in the ownership of the Council and the Council would continue to be 

responsible for managing and maintaining the assets.  

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 Transfer the Bourne Recreation Ground and Dyke Playing Field open space assets and 

the credit balance held in the SEA reserve for Bourne to Bourne Town Council together 

with the responsibility to manage and maintain these sites.  

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The reasons for the recommendation are set out in the report. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Should the recommendations be supported, then the required disposal process will be 

implemented. 

 

18



 

 
 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The financial implications are referenced throughout the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and s151 Officer 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The legal implications of Section 123 LGA 1972 have been covered in paragraph 1.13 and 

1.14 of this report and the necessary advertising by way of statutory notices would be 

undertaken prior to transfer, with any public responses considered as appropriate.  

8.2 Public open space status will be protected in the terms of the transfer deeds of these assets, 

by way of inclusion of appropriate permitted use covenants and 'buy back' options for the 

Council.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 There are no equality and safeguarding implications as the recommendation is in respect 

of a transfer of ownership proposals only. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 If assets are transferred to Bourne Town Council then ongoing responsibility for health and 

safety would also transfer.  Therefore Bourne Town Council would need to ensure the 

appropriate arrangements including insurance cover are put in place. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 N/a 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 N/a 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 7 September 2021 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=664&Year=0 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A (i) - Land Registry Plans (Bourne Recreation Ground) 

15.2 Appendix A (ii) - Land Registry Plans (Dyke Playing Field) 

 

 

 

 

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=664&Year=0


This page is intentionally left blank



21



This page is intentionally left blank



These are the notes referred to on the following official copy

The electronic official copy of the title plan follows this message.

Please note that this is the only official copy we will issue.  We will not issue a paper official copy.

This official copy was delivered electronically and when printed will not be to scale.  You can obtain a paper

official copy by ordering one from HM Land Registry.

This official copy is issued on 06 September 2021 shows the state of this title plan on 06 September 2021 at

09:35:38. It is admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original (s.67 Land Registration Act 2002).

This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions

in scale. Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the

ground.

This title is dealt with by the HM Land Registry, Kingston Upon Hull Office .

© Crown copyright. Produced by HM Land Registry. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the

prior written permission of Ordnance Survey. Licence Number 100026316.

23



This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.
24



 

 

 

Cabinet 
12 October 2021 

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins 

  Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 

           

 

Statement of Community Involvement 2021 

This report seeks approval of the Councils updated version of the Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) to incorporate additional minor modifications which were not included within the 
adopted version of the SCI for 2021.  
 

 

Report Author 

Jake Horton – Planning Policy Officer 

 
 01476406466 

  j.horton@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth Non-Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Shaza Brannon (Principal Planning Policy Officer) 27 September 2021 

Approved by: Emma Whittaker (Assistant Director of Planning) 28 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Nick Robins (Cabinet Member for Planning 
and Planning Policy)  

27 September 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Cabinet approves the revised Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) (as 
shown in Appendix A) to incorporate additional minor modifications which were 
not included within the adopted version of the SCI for 2021.   

 

25

Agenda Item 5

mailto:j.horton@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

Background 

1.1 The Council is required to produce a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) in 

accordance with section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The 

purpose of the SCI is to set out how the council will engage with communities who have 

an interest in matters relating to development in their area. 

1.2 The Statement of Community Involvement for 2021 was approved by Cabinet on the 14th 

of September.  

1.3 A number of minor modifications which were not included within the adopted version of the 

SCI for 2021 are now recommended to be incorporated within the document.  

1.4 These additional minor amendments to the adopted SCI have been proposed to ensure 

that Ward Councillors are notified of all planning applications within their respective Ward 

areas, to provide further clarity around the accessibility of certain consultation methods 

and reflect the updated guidance in terms of residents in England who no longer have to 

“shield” as part of the Governments updated COVID19 guidelines. A full list of the 

proposed minor modifications can be found in Appendix B 

1.5 These changes, as documented in paragraph 1.4, need to be reflected within the SCI and 

therefore the council has produced a revised version of the document for 2021(Appendix 

A).  

Purpose of the Statement of Community involvement 

1.6 The purpose of the SCI is to set out how the community, businesses and others with an 

interest in the development of the District, can engage with the planning system. This 

includes the preparation and revision of Development Plan Documents (DPDs) (commonly 

referred to as Local Plans), preparation of Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), 

and procedures for consulting the public on planning, listed building and other 

applications. 

1.7 The SCI outlines how organisations and individuals can be involved in the plan making 

process and in the consideration of planning applications. It also sets out standards and 

arrangements as to how the Council will consult and report back to those engaged in the 

process. 

1.8 Having clear arrangements for carrying out consultation will help to establish a two-way 

process between the community and the Council. It will provide the community with 

opportunities to help shape their local areas and create a transparent, fair and open 

planning process. 

1.9 The SCI contains: 

• Information on when, who and how we will consult when drafting planning documents. 

• Information on when, who and how we will consult on planning, listed building and other 
types of applications. 

• The techniques available and likely to be used during consultation. It is important to retain 
a degree of flexibility so that methods can be appropriately tailored to the planning 
document in question, to allow for changes in the regulations or best practice guidance, 
and to reflect that new methods of communication and engagement may become available 
over the life of the document. 

26



 

 
 

 

 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 A 6 week public consultation on the draft revised SCI was undertaken between the 5th of 

February 2021 and the 16 March 2021. The draft SCI was refined, taking into account the 

comments made during the consultation and was subsequently approved by Cabinet on 

the 14 of September 2021. The September 14 Cabinet report provides further context in 

terms of the constitution and feedback and can be found in the background reports section 

of this report.  

2.2 As the proposed modifications to the adopted SCI document are only minor in scale and 

focus around providing further clarity to specific sections, further public consultation has 

not been undertaken.   

2.3 The update SCI document has not been to overview and scrutiny committee 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Option 1: That the recommended revisions to the Statement of Community Involvement 

(SCI) (as shown in Appendix A) are approved to incorporate the additional minor 

modifications which were not included within the adopted version of the SCI for 2021.   

Option 2: That the additional amendments to the SCI (as shown in Appendix B) are not 

approved and the Council continues with the currently adopted version of the SCI 

document that was approved on the 14 of September.  

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 Option 1: That the recommended revisions to the Statement of Community Involvement 

(SCI) (as shown in Appendix A) are approved to incorporate the additional minor 

modifications which were not included within the adopted version of the SCI for 2021.  

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended provides that 

the Council must prepare a Statement of Community Involvement, which is a statement of 

the authority’s policy as to the involvement in the exercise of its functions. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The Statement of Community Involvement would be placed on the South Kesteven 

website. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Section 151 Officer 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The council is legally required, under section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004, to produce an SCI, to set out how we will engage with our 

communities who have an interest in matters relating to development in their area. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

27



 

 
 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 An Equalities Impact screening assessment has been undertaken (Appendix C) and the 

outcomes found that no major change to the report was needed. The equality analysis has 

not identified any potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all opportunities to 

promote equality have been taken into consideration as the SCI seeks to ensure that all 

members of the community are able to engage with planning matters. 

9.2 The proposed minor modifications to the adopted SCI document look to ensure 

consultations are more accessible. Therefore it is not proposed that there would be any 

changes to the outcomes of the Equalities impact Screening assessment.  

9.3 There are no safeguarding implications arising from the report.  

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The Council would be at risk if it did not have an updated SCI in place: it is a legal 

requirement as per the implications listed above. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 A key change to the proposed SCI, is that it is no longer a minimum consultation 

requirement to send printed hard copies of documents to deposit locations (i.e. libraries or 

other SKDC council offices). Computer access is free at the libraries and available to all, 

including those, for example, with sight or hearing impairments. In line with our aim to 

reducing carbon emissions, under the climate change agenda, the Council will therefore 

make an assessment of practicality before hard copies are sent to deposit locations. This 

approach will also help reduce costs. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None  

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Link to the September 14 Cabinet report on the approved SCI - 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30820/Cabinet%20Report%20-

%20Statement%20Of%20Community%20Involvement%202021.pdf 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – Statement of Community Involvement (2021) including proposed 

modifications 

15.2 Appendix B – Changes to the approved Statement of Community Involvement 

15.3 Appendix C – Equalities Impact Assessment  

 

 

28

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30820/Cabinet%20Report%20-%20Statement%20Of%20Community%20Involvement%202021.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30820/Cabinet%20Report%20-%20Statement%20Of%20Community%20Involvement%202021.pdf


Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statement of Community Involvement  

 

2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

29



ii 
 

General Information  

Title 
Statement of Community Involvement (2021)  
 

Subject matter  
To provide a clear structure and guidance on how the Council intends to engage with the community 
and stakeholders through the planning process 
 
Consutlation  
The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was consulted upon from the 5th of February 2021, 
until the 19th of March 2021.  
 

Contact Information 

Planning Policy Team 

South Kesteven District Council Offices 

Grantham 

Lincolnshire  

NG31 6PZ  
 

Tel: 01476406080 

E-mail: planningpolicy@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Web: http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/ 
 

  

30

mailto:planningpolicy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


iii 
 

Table of Contents  

 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 1 

1. Background ..................................................................................................................... 1 

2. What is a Statement of Community Involvement? ........................................................ 1 

3. Legal Requirements ........................................................................................................ 2 

4. Why is a Review Needed? ............................................................................................... 2 

5. General Principles of consultation; ................................................................................. 3 

6. Changes in consultation .................................................................................................. 3 

Planning Policy Documents ........................................................................................................ 4 

7. South Kesteven Local Plan .............................................................................................. 4 

8. Development Plan Documents (Local Plans) - When Do We Consult ............................ 4 

Stage 1 – Preparation of a Local Plan (Regulation 18) ....................................................... 4 

Stage 2 – Publication of a Local Plan (Regulation 19) ........................................................ 5 

Stage 3 – Submission of a Local Plan to the Secretary of State (Regulation 22) ................ 5 

Stage 4 – Examination of a Local Plan (Regulation 24) ...................................................... 5 

Stage 5 – Adoption of a Local Plan document (Regulation 26) .......................................... 6 

9. Supplementary Planning Documents - When Do We Consult ....................................... 6 

Stage 1 – Preparation and Public participation (Regulation 12 & 13)................................ 6 

Stage 2 – Adoption of supplementary planning documents (Regulation 14) .................... 6 

Neighbourhood Planning ........................................................................................................... 8 

10. What is Neighbourhood Planning ............................................................................... 8 

11. Covid 19 and Neighbourhood Planning ...................................................................... 9 

Who is involved in the Plan Preparation Process? .................................................................. 10 

12. Who Do We Consult? ................................................................................................ 10 

13. The Duty to Co -Operate ........................................................................................... 10 

14. Consultation Database .............................................................................................. 10 

15. How Do We Consult .................................................................................................. 11 

16. Consultation Methods. .............................................................................................. 12 

Community involvement in Planning Applications .................................................................. 16 

17. Consulting on Planning Applications ......................................................................... 16 

18. Pre-Application Advice and Consultation ................................................................. 16 

19. Pre-Application Consultation by Developers ............................................................ 16 

20. Notification/Publicity of Planning Applications ........................................................ 16 

21. Weekly list ................................................................................................................. 17 

31



iv 
 

22. Press notices .............................................................................................................. 17 

23. Parish and Town Councils ......................................................................................... 17 

24. Neighbouring owner/occupier Notifications & Site Notices .................................... 18 

25. Commenting on Planning Applications ..................................................................... 18 

26. Re-notification ........................................................................................................... 20 

27. Determination of Planning Applications ................................................................... 20 

28. Role of Elected Members .......................................................................................... 21 

29. Notification of Decision on Planning Applications .................................................... 21 

30. Planning Appeals ....................................................................................................... 21 

31. Prior Approval Notifications ...................................................................................... 22 

32. Designation of New or Amended Conservation Areas ............................................. 22 

33. Works to Protected Trees ......................................................................................... 23 

34. Hedgerow Removal Applications .............................................................................. 23 

35. Enforcement .............................................................................................................. 23 

Appendix 1: Consultation Bodies ............................................................................................. 25 

Engaging underrepresented Groups. ................................................................................... 25 

Vulnerable and Shielded residents – Covid19 ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Appendix 2: Consultation on Local Plan Documents ............................................................... 27 

Appendix 3: Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents ....................................... 35 

Appendix 4: Consultation on Planning Applications ................................................................ 37 

Appendix 5: Consultation on Neighbourhood Plans................................................................ 38 

Appendix 6: Neighbourhood Planning Protocol ...................................................................... 40 

Purpose of this Protocol ....................................................................................................... 40 

General Support ................................................................................................................... 40 

Supporting the Designation of Neighbourhood Areas/Business Areas ............................... 41 

Supporting the Preparation of Neighbourhood Development Plans .................................. 42 

Independent Examination .................................................................................................... 43 

Referendum .......................................................................................................................... 43 

Adoption ............................................................................................................................... 43 

Appendix 6 Glossary and List of Abbreviations ....................................................................... 45 

 

 

  

32



v 
 

List of Abbreviations 

DPD – Development Plan Document  
 
HRA- Habitat Regulation Assessment 
 
LEP - Local Enterprise Partnership  
 
LDS - Local Development Scheme  
 
LPA - Local Planning Authority 
 
LP – Local Plan 
 
MHCLG - Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 
 
NDP - Neighbourhood Development Plan 
 
PINS - Planning Inspectorate 
 
SA - Sustainability Appraisal 
 
SCI - Statement of Community Involvement 
 
SKDC – South Kesteven District Council 
  
SPD - Supplementary Planning Document  
 
TPO - Tree Preservation Order 

 

 

33



1 
 

 

Introduction 
 

1. Background  
 
1.1. The Council published its first Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) in April 2006, 

which was subsequently updated and in November 2014. A third and latest SCI was 
produced in August of 2018.  

 
1.2. Since 2018, there have been further legislative changes to the planning system, and it 

is therefore appropriate for the SCI to be updated in 2020 to reflect these changes and 
other evolving methods of consultation.  It is also important to learn from previous 
experience around whether the means of engagement around plan making and in the 
consideration of planning applications remains effective.  

 
1.3. This Review also includes changes which need to be made to the SCI to address the 

impact of Covid-19 on the planning process. These changes will ensure that the Council 
can continue to determine planning applications and make progress on the Local Plan 
Review and Neighbourhood Plans. All of which will enable the District to respond 
positively to address the inevitable economic impact of Covid-19. 

 

2. What is a Statement of Community Involvement? 
 

2.1. The purpose of the SCI is to set out how the community, businesses and others with an 
interest in the development of the District can engage with the planning system. This 
includes the preparation and revision of Development Plan Documents (DPDs) 
(commonly referred to as Local Plans), preparation of Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPDs) and procedures for consulting the public on planning, listed building 
and other applications. 

 
2.2. The SCI outlines how organisations and individuals can be involved in the plan making 

process and in the consideration of planning applications. It also sets out standards and 
arrangements as to how the Council will consult and report back to those engaged in 
the process. 

 
2.3. Having clear arrangements for carrying out consultation will help to establish a two-way 

process between the community and the Council. It will provide the community with 
opportunities to help shape their local areas and create a transparent, fair and open 
planning process. 

 
2.4. The SCI contains: 
 

• Background information to provide information on when, who and how we will consult 
when drafting planning documents 

 

• Information on when, who and how we will consult on planning, listed building and 
other types of applications 

 

• The techniques available and likely to be used during confutation. (It is important to 
retain a degree of flexibility so that methods can be appropriately tailored to the 
planning document in question, to allow for changes in the regulations or best practice 
guidance, and to reflect that new methods of communication and engagement may 

34



2 
 

become available over the life of the document.) 
 

3. Legal Requirements  
 
3.1. Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) including South Kesteven District Council are 

required to produce a SCI under section 18 (Part 2)1 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
3.2. The minimum requirements for consultation on planning policy documents are included 

within The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (the 
Local Planning Regulations)2  

 
3.3. The minimum requirements for consultation on planning applications are included within 

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)3 Order 
(DMPO) for planning applications. 

 

4. Why is a Review Needed? 
 
4.1. The review of the Council’s SCI takes account of the changes in legislation and 

regulations since the last review in 2018. The Government is committed to increasing 
the ability of local communities to influence planning decisions and future development 
in their areas by making the planning system simpler and more accessible. The National 
Planning Policy Framework (2019) under paragraph 16 states that - Plans should: 

 
“c) be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers 
and communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and 
operators and statutory consultees” 

 
COVID- 19 
 
4.2. On 13th May 2020 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

published temporary measures designed to make it easier to operate the planning 
system in light of the COVID-19 pandemic4. These measures included an update to the 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) in relation to Local Plan preparation and 
the making of temporary changes to an SCI to allow progress on plan making to 
continue.  In particular the NPPG5 states that; 

 
“Where any of the policies in the Statement of Community Involvement cannot be 
complied with due to current guidance to help combat the spread of coronavirus 
(COVID-19), the local planning authority is encouraged to undertake an immediate 
review and update the policies where necessary so that plan-making can continue” 

 
4.3. There are no requirements in legislation for the Local Planning Authority to consult when 

reviewing and updating the SCI. The Council therefore intends to use the reviewed SCI 
immediately in the light of current Covid-19 restrictions but will make concerted efforts 
to inform the public of the changes made and will also consult on the changes whilst 
putting these into operation. The reviewed to SCI may therefore be subject to further 
change following that consultation. 

 
1 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/contents 
2 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)(Amendment) Regulations 2017 
3 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made 
4 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-planning-update 
5 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making 

35

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-planning-update
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making


3 
 

 

5. General Principles of consultation; 
 
5.1. The following have been identified as the core concepts of consultation, in which 

SKDC aims to achieve:  
 

• We will ensure that everyone who is being consulted is clear on what they are being 
consulted on 

 

• We will ensure that as wide a range of people as possible are involved during 
consultation and do our upmost to target hard to reach groups 

 

• We will ensure that a range of techniques and methods are available to fit the right 
consultation 

 

• We will adopt a co-ordinated approach to consultation 
 

• We will ensure that results are fed back, and people are informed as to how their 
views have impacted on decisions 

 

• We will make sure that we take appropriate action following consultation to improve 
service quality  

 

• We will apply these key principles whilst ensuring that national planning requirements 
are met. 

 

6. Changes in consultation 
 
6.1. The Covid 19 pandemic has affected all aspects of the implementation of the Council’s 

statutory planning functions. In particular it has affected the ability to make documents 
available in public places including local libraries, hold exhibitions, circulate leaflets, 
attend forums or public meetings. The submission of paper-based representations as 
well as the ability for people and groups to meet together to prepare joint responses to 
applications and DPDs has also been affected.  

 
6.2. Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government and (MHCLG) and the Planning 

Advisory Service has issued clear advice that Local Planning Authorities should forge 
ahead with the preparation of local plans as these will be key to enabling economic 
recovery which will be necessary once the pandemic is over.  

 
6.3. To do this, changes need to be made to the SCI which will enable the planning process 

to progress with a focus on electronic and web-based formats as recommended by the 
Government. The changes outlined in this document provide the opportunity to maintain 
progress with the Local Plan and to continue to determine planning applications in 
circumstances where there are significant limitations on access, movement and face to 
face contact which make the current provisions of the SCI impossible to implement. The 
Statutory Regulations will continue to be met throughout the process and are included 
within this SCI as the minimum consultation.  
 

  

36



4 
 

Planning Policy Documents 
 

7. South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
7.1. The Local Plan (Development Plan Document) forms the framework for the location and 

principles of development (such as homes, shops, offices) and sets out how the natural 
and built environment will be protected. It is a “spatial” plan, because it deals with the 
location and layout of developments and activities and how these affect people and their 
environment. 

 
7.2. The current Local Plan for South Kesteven6 was approved on the 30th of January 2020 

and consists of a singular cohesive document. The South Kesteven Local Plan sets out 
the vision, objectives, spatial strategy and policies for the future development of the 
district.  It also identifies land and allocates sites for different types of development, 
such as housing and employment, to deliver the planned growth for South Kesteven 
2036. 

 
7.3. In the current adopted Local Plan, the Council is committed to an early review. The 

review policy (M1) requires the Council to commence document preparation for a new 
Local Plan from April 2020, with submission to the Secretary of State for examination 
by the end of December 2023. Therefore in line with policy M1, the Council has begun 
preparations of the Local Plan review for the District.  

 
7.4. Additionally, the Council may also prepare Supplementary Planning Documents 

(SPDs)7 to provide further guidance and information on policies. SPDs do not form part 
of the adopted development plan but need to be considered when submitting proposals. 

 

8. Development Plan Documents (Local Plans) - When Do We Consult 
 
8.1. The key stages for the preparation of DPDs are set out in the Town and Country 

Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). The following 
section provides a summary of the main stages a DPD must satisfy in order to proceed 
through the formal processes. More detail on each of these stages in terms of how the 
Council will undertake consultation and engagement is provided in Appendix 2. 

 

Stage 1 – Preparation of a Local Plan (Regulation 18) 
 
8.2. There is considerable flexibility in how the initial stages of plan preparation may be 

carried out, Typically, at this early stage, the Council must notify certain ‘specific’ 
(identified in the Local Planning Regulations) and ‘general’ (identified by the Local 
Authority) consultation bodies, as well as residents and businesses within the area, of 
the intention to prepare a Local Plan and invite representations about what the Local 
Plan ought to contain. The key aim of this consultation and engagement is to encourage 
public involvement at an early stage of the plan making process. 

 
8.3. During the development of the plan the Council will undertake informal and on-going 

engagement with the public and stakeholders. This may be focused on a particular issue 
/ policy area or more wide-ranging documentation, such as on a draft version of the 
Local Plan itself.  

 

 
6 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26202 
7 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8384 

37

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26202
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8384


5 
 

8.4. At this stage, a Sustainability Appraisal Report (SA) will also be prepared to help direct 
and influence the Local Plan. The SA will identify and consider likely significant effects 
of the plan on social factors, the environment and the economy. It will then highlight 
potential mitigation measures to reduce them. Each iteration of the Local Plan will be 
informed by an updated and revised SA, which will be published for consultation 
alongside the Local Plan. 

 

Stage 2 – Publication of a Local Plan (Regulation 19) 
 
8.5. After careful consideration of the representations received from the previous regulation 

18 stage, the Council will produce the publication (pre – submission) version of the 
Local Plan. This will be the final version of the Local Plan that the Council intends to 
submit for public examination.  

 
8.6. The pre -submission Local Plan will be published for a minimum of six weeks and 

representations are invited against the published NPPFs tests of soundness i.e. is the 
plan justified, effective, consistent with national policy and positively prepared. This is 
effectively the last stage when representations can be made to the Council about the 
Plan. 

 
8.7. The Council will prepare a Statement of Consultation, setting out how the community 

has been consulted at each stage together with a summary of the main issues raised 
through the representations received and how these have been considered. 

 

Stage 3 – Submission of a Local Plan to the Secretary of State (Regulation 22) 
 
8.8. At this stage a copy of the Submission Local Plan and supporting information will be 

submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination. The supporting 
information will include the formal representations made to the Local Plan during the 
regulation 19 consultation and will include a summary of how the council has responded 
to the main issues raised.  

 

Stage 4 – Examination of a Local Plan (Regulation 24) 
 
8.9. An Inspector, appointed by the Secretary of State, will examine the Submission Local 

Plan and consider the issues raised within the representations made. Anyone who 
made a formal representation when the pre - submission Plan was published will be 
notified of the examination process. The right to appear and be heard at examination 
hearings is limited to those persons who have made representations seeking a change 
to the Plan. However, the Inspector is not precluded from inviting anyone to appear and 
be heard at a hearing session(s) where they think that person is needed to enable the 
soundness of the Plan to be determined. This is outlined in accordance with section 
20(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (PCPA) 20048 

 
8.10. The Planning Inspector will determine the issues that they wish to consider through 

Hearing sessions and will determine who is invited to participate at these sessions. 
 
8.11. The Inspector will consider whether the plan has met the appropriate legal and 

procedural requirements, including being prepared in accordance with the SCI. If the 
plan is considered legally compliant the Inspector will then consider if the document is 
sound 
 

 
8 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/20 

38

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/20


6 
 

8.12. Where the Inspector identifies that Main Modifications (MMs) may be needed, the 
nature and likely extent of these will be discussed at the examination hearings.  
Following the hearings, the Inspector will ask the Council to produce a schedule of 
proposed MMs and to carry out public consultation on these to ensure anyone whose 
interests may be affected by the modification has an opportunity to comment on it.  The 
consultation period will normally last for a minimum of 6 weeks 

 
8.13. The Inspector will publish a written report with a recommendation to adopt the Local 

Plan, either with or without modifications, or recommend that that the plan should be 
withdrawn. 

 

Stage 5 – Adoption of a Local Plan document (Regulation 26) 
 
8.14. The Council will consider the findings of the Inspector’s Report. If the Plan is 

recommended for adoption, then it will need to be approved by Full Council. On 
adoption, the Council will notify anyone who has requested this. An adoption statement 
will also be published on the Councils website.  

 

9. Supplementary Planning Documents - When Do We Consult 
 
9.1. Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) expand on the policies set out within 

DPDs. They provide further planning guidance rather than policy. They are therefore 
only viewed as a material consideration within the planning decision making process.  

 
9.2. SPDs are not subject to independent examination and have fewer required stages in 

their production. The key stages for the preparation of SPDs are set out in the Local 
Planning Regulations. A full list of consultation methods used in SPDs can be found in 
Appendix 3 

 

Stage 1 – Preparation and Public participation (Regulation 12 & 13) 
 
9.3. This stage involves the Council developing a range of evidence to support the 

document.  This may involve informal consultation with relevant stakeholders and 
interested parties where appropriate. 

 
9.4. A screening report will be prepared to establish whether a Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) and/or Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) is required.  Where 
considered necessary, these will be undertaken throughout the preparation process. 

 
9.5. A draft version of the Supplementary Planning Document is prepared based on the 

evidence collected. 
 
9.6. The Council will then consult on a draft version of the SPD document for at least 4 

weeks.  Any representations made during the consultation period will be considered 
and the document revised, where appropriate, to take into account the comments 
received. 

 

Stage 2 – Adoption of supplementary planning documents (Regulation 14) 
 
9.7. The Council will consider all the representations made and decide whether to adopt the 

Plan unchanged or with revisions to address issues raised in the representations. A full 
Council Decision will need to be made in order to approve the SPD document for 
adoption.  

39



7 
 

 
9.8. On adoption, the Council will notify any person who has requested this. An adoption 

statement will also be produced and made publicly available (on the Council’s website). 
  

40



8 
 

Neighbourhood Planning 
 

10. What is Neighbourhood Planning 
 
10.1. The Localism Act 20119 introduced a new right for local communities to produce a 

neighbourhood plan for their local area. These plans a can be very concise and focused 
around a specific area or go into more detail around allocating land for development 
and including policies to manage development. Preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan 
should be led by a Parish Council or a Neighbourhood Forum area which do not have 
a parish council.  

 
10.2. Neighbourhood Plans have to be in line with national policy and the strategic elements 

of the County Council’s adopted Local Plan, they cannot propose less development 
than that proposed by the Council’s Local Plan. 

 
10.3. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 201210 (as amended) sets out the 

requirements for publicity and consultation in relation to the preparation of 
Neighbourhood Plans and Neighbourhood Development Orders.  The approach taken 
to engaging and involving local residents, business and other stakeholders is a matter 
for the Parish or Town Council and is it up to them to decide how they involve people 
and undertake consultation. 

 
10.4. As Neighbourhood Plans are not prepared by the Council, the SCI cannot prescribe 

what methods of community consultation they should undertake. However, as a 
minimum any Neighbourhood Plan must meet the requirements of The Neighbourhood 
Planning (General) Regulations 2012. Bodies responsible for preparing Neighbourhood 
Plans should be inclusive and open to ensure the wider community: is kept fully 
informed of what is being proposed; is able to make their views known throughout the 
process; has opportunities to be actively involved in shaping the emerging 
neighbourhood Plan; and is made aware of how their views have informed the draft 
plan. Such bodies must also publicise the draft Neighbourhood Plan for at least 6 weeks 
and consult any of the consultation bodies set out in Schedule 1 of the Regulations 
whose interests it considers may be affected by the draft plan. 

 
10.5. Although the Council is not responsible for the drafting of the plan, it is responsible for 

some statutory functions, which are set out in the Regulations. These include publicising 
the intention to produce a Neighbourhood Plan on its website, undertaking formal 
consultation when the Neighbourhood Plan is submitted, facilitating the examination, 
publishing the examiner’s report and organising a referendum. The Council will 
undertake these functions in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations and 
the principles of this SCI  

 
10.6. The Council also has a duty to provide technical advice and support to communities in 

the preparation of their plans. In line with the Neighbourhood Plan Regulations 2018, 
the series of full guidance measures are set out in Appendix 5 with further information 
being found on the council’s website11 

 
10.7. If a Neighbourhood Plan is agreed by the local community in a referendum it will become 

part of the Development Plan and be used in the determination of planning applications. 
 

 
9 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted 
10 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents/made 
11 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8161 

41

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents/made
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8161


9 
 

11. Covid 19 and Neighbourhood Planning  
 
11.1. The Government has been clear that all members of society are required to adhere to 

guidance to help combat the spread of coronavirus (COVID-19). The guidance has 
implications for neighbourhood planning including: the referendum process; decision-
making; oral representations for examinations; and public consultation. 

 
Further information on the guidance can be found on the GOV.UK website 

  
Link - https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2  

  

42

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2


10 
 

Who is involved in the Plan Preparation Process? 
 

12. Who Do We Consult? 
 
12.1. When preparing DPD’s and SPDs, the Council will seek to engage and consult, where 

appropriate with the general public and the wider community 
 
12.2. The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 

amended) specify a number of organisations that must be consulted These are known 
as the ‘specific consultation bodies’ and are outlined in Appendix 1. 

 
12.3. The Council also has discretion to identify a number of other bodies who represent 

certain interests and may be appropriate to consult at key stages. These are known as 
the ‘general consultation bodies’ and are also outlined in Appendix 1. 

 
12.4. It should be noted that these bodies may change as a result of amendments to the Local 

Planning Regulations and/or the Council amending/updating the list of general 
consultation bodies. 

 
12.5. In addition to the ‘specific’ and ‘general’ consultation bodies, the Council is committed 

to involving a wide range of other individuals and organisations including members of 
the public, residents’ associations, local businesses, developers/agents, landowners, 
local community/voluntary groups and ‘hard to reach’ groups in the preparation of 
DPDs, SPDs and Neighbourhood Plans. The majority of these groups have been 
identified in Appendix 1. 

 

13. The Duty to Co -Operate 
 
13.1. In addition to the legal requirements that SCI must comply with Section 110 of the 

Localism Act 2011 sets out a 'Duty to Co-operate’12 It is a requirement that LPAs engage 
with neighbouring authorities and other statutory bodies to consider joint working 
arrangements on strategic planning matters. 

 
13.2. Council’s must also produce, maintain and update statements of common ground 

documenting the strategic cross boundary matters to be addressed and the progress 
which has been made in cooperating to address these matters. Statements of common 
ground should be produced using the approach set out in national planning guidance 
and be made publicly available. 

 
13.3. The Council is committed to meeting this duty and intends to work closely with 

neighbouring authorities and other partner organisations and stakeholders. The 
Councils Duty to Co-operate document contains list of consultees who must also be 
notified of any DPD or SPD consultations on planning matters across SKDC.  

 

14. Consultation Database 
 
14.1. To manage the consultation process and to ensure records are up to date, the Council 

maintains a database with the relevant contact details of the various bodies to be 
consulted.  This includes those that have either commented upon previous consultation 
documents or expressed an interest in being involved with the preparation of the Local 
Plan/ local plan review. In 2018 in compliance with the General Data Protection 

 
12 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24263&p=0 

43

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24263&p=0


11 
 

Regulations (2018) (GDPR) the Council contacted all those on the Local Plan mailing 
list asking. All subsequent consultation response forms have included information about 
how data is stored and processed in accordance with the GDPR, including an option to 
confirm that they wished to remain on the list 

 
14.2. Any organisation or individual can be added to the database at any time by contacting 

the planning policy team and providing their contact details. Wherever possible 
electronic contact details will be required.  It should be noted, however, that not all  
bodies and organisations will be consulted on every document.  

 
14.3. The subject matter of the document and the interests of the individual bodies and 

organisations concerned will determine this, for example where a consultation is limited 
to a particular topic or is particularly specialist in nature. 

 
14.4. The Council will ensure access to its information in accordance with the Freedom of 

Information Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 1998 and the storing and processing of 
personal data in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulations (2018)13  

 
14.5. The Council may publish letters and completed web forms which are submitted as part 

of Local Plan consultations unless there are specific and justifiable reasons for it to be 
confidential. Personal contact details such as email and telephone numbers will be 
removed, however individual names and organisations will be published. Original 
documents will be retained at the Council Offices or Electronically on the Council’s 
database in line with the data protection regulations 2018.  

 

15. How Do We Consult 
 
15.1. Planning legislation sets out the minimum requirements for public participation when 

preparing Local Plan documents and Supplementary Planning Documents.  This 
includes making consultation documents available at the Council’ Principal offices and 
on the Councils website. Local Plan consultations will be a minimum of six weeks with 
consultations on SPD’s being a minimum of four weeks. The Council considers these 
to be the minimum standards and aim to do better than the minimum requirements 
where possible. 

 
15.2. In light of the restrictions in place in response to Covid19 it is recognised that a number 

of the “normal” consultation techniques will not be available and new methods of 
engaging in virtual and electronic formats will be developed. The Local Planning 
Regulations allow for documents and notices to be sent by electronic communication. 
Or alternative measures may be put in place which allows a copy of the relevant 
documents to be purchased from the council for a fee. 

 
15.3. The Council will notify organisations and individuals where appropriate of any 

consultation events electronically or where a person does not have an email address, 
letters will be sent to them to inform them of the consultation. Those who are not on the 
consultation database will be captured via various other means of appropriate 
consultation as highlighted in the methods of consultation table (page x).  

 
15.4. The preferred method of consultation response is by email, as this will help reduce the 

impact of Covid19 and supports the ability of the planning team to work remotely, it also 
enables those involved in the Local Plan to be regularly updated during current 
restrictions. The submission of representations on electronic forms will in turn facilitate 

 
13 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/12/contents/enacted 

44

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/12/contents/enacted


12 
 

the Examination process and support the work of the Planning Inspector. Traditional 
forms of representation such as letters or using paper copies of the Council’s 
consultation response forms, if relevant, will also be accepted.  

 
15.5. There is a distinction between ‘formal stages’ of plan production (where the nature of 

consultation is governed by the Local Planning Regulations) and ‘ongoing 
consultation’ with the community as part of the development and assessment of 
emerging options or draft plans. The types of consultation method to be used will vary 
depending on the stage of production. 

 
15.6. The Council intends to use a range of methods to inform and consult with the 

community in preparing Local Plan documents. The following table illustrates key 
methods of consultation which may be used, their main benefits and potential 
consultee groups which they would be appropriate for. 

 
15.7. Further details of how these methods will be applied to DPDs or SPDs are outlined in 

Appendices 2 and 3 respectively. 
 

16. Consultation Methods. 
 
16.1. Some potential methods of consultation, together with how they benefit the community 

are set out below. It is important to note that not all of these methods will be relevant or 
applicable to each stage or for every DPD or SPD document. Furthermore some of 
these techniques may not be possible as Covid19 restrictions remain in place. The list 
below is not therefore exhaustive but gives an indication of the different techniques 
which might be used, along with the minimum requirement that is required with each 
method. 

 

Method Requirement 
Minimum  

Benefits  

Make documents 
available for public 
viewing at the 
council’s principal 
office locations*.  
(Viewing documents 
may have to be made 
by appointment 
during office opening 
hours) 

 

Provide one hard copy 
of documentation and 
supporting 
information to South 
Kesteven Council 
offices in Grantham.  
Please note that the 
Government has 
published a 
temporary change up 
to 31st December 
2020 (now 31st 
December 2021) to 
the Local Plan 
Regulations to 
remove this 
requirement in the 
light of Covid-19. 
 

Access to consultation documents in printed and 
format free of charge.  
 
Easily accessible to all.  

45



13 
 

Make documents, 
available for 
viewing on the 
Council’s website.  

Upload copy of 
documents and 
supporting 
information onto 
SKDCs website, under 
the appropriate 
webpage.  

Easy access to electronic consultation 
documents alongside online response forms 
which allow for submission of representations in 
a user-friendly format.  
 
Website is available 24 hours a day, information 
is available to be viewed free of charge.  
 

Make documents 
available for public 
viewing at libraries 
across the District*.  

Provide one hard copy 
of documentation and 
supporting 
information to 
libraries across South 
Kesteven. Please note 
that the Government 
has published a 
temporary change up 
to 31st December 
2020 (now 31st 
December 2021) to 
the Local Plan 
Regulations to 
remove this 
requirement in the 
light of Covid-19. 
 

Access to consultation documents in printed and 
format free of charge.  
 
Easily accessible to all. 

Make copies of 
documents 
purchasable via 
request**. (The cost 
of documents and 
postage will be in 
accordance with the 
Councils Schedule of 
Fees and Charges).  
 
 

Provide (through post) 
a hard copy of 
documents and 
relevant supporting 
information.  
 

To support those who do not have access to the 
consultation documents via the internet or in 
electronic format. 
 
To support those who may not be able to view 
the documents at one of the Councils principal 
office locations.  
 

Hold public 
exhibitions* where 
practical & 
appropriate (The use 
and format of 
exhibitions will be 
determined in relation 
to the proposed 
consultation stage, 
the document type 
and ability to hold 
such exhibitions.)  

 

Provide an 
opportunity for the 
public to see 
documents and talk to 
officers at a face to 
face level at a 
predetermined time/ 
location.  

Widely publicises information and enables early 
engagement in a user-friendly way.  
 
Can cover a variety of locations and allows for 
many different groups to be informed.  

46



14 
 

Production of 
information leaflet 
around consultation 
documents*  

Produce simple 
leaflets to summarise 
the key aspects of 
current consultation 
documentation.  

Provides a brief summary of the current 
consultation which can be easily understood 
in layperson terms.  
 
Can be circulated to many individuals/ 
households to encourage further involvement in 
the consultation process.  
 

Provide 
Information in the 
Council’s 
newsletter.  

Where necessary, 
provide an 
informative update on 
any upcoming 
consultations through 
the councils 
Newsletter (SK Today)  
 

Distributed newsletter informs people of Local 
Plan progress and encourages further 
involvement in the process. 
 
SK Today is distributed to a wide audience across 
the district so may inform those who have been 
identified as hard to reach.  

Provide informative 
press releases to 
local newspapers 
and/local radio 
stations, TV and 
other forms of 
Digital Media.  

Where necessary, 
provide an 
informative update to 
the appropriate media 
outlets informing 
readers/ 
listeners/viewers of 
any upcoming 
consultations.  
 

Information to the local community and 
stimulates debate.    
 
South Kesteven has three local newspapers 
which are distributed to a wide audience across 
the district so may inform those who have been 
identified as hard to reach. Local Radio / TV 
coverage is also good.  
 

Distribute 
information to 
Town and Parish 
Councils through 
existing channels.  

Specifically ensure 
that all Town and 
Parish Councils are 
informed of 
consultations (through 
Parish update, public 
notice letters etc.)  

Allows information to be displayed in public 
locations in local towns and villages. 
 
Gives opportunity for representatives of all 
Parish/ Town Councils within SKDC to raise and 
discuss issues via meetings etc.   
 
Encourages Parish/ Town Councillors to be 
involved in consultation process.  
 

Meet with 
Stakeholder 
groups* (where 
relevant and 
necessary) 

Engage where 
possible and 
practicable with target 
groups, community 
groups and forums, 
including use of 
meetings, workshops 
and focus groups 
 

Gives opportunity for groups to raise and discuss 
specific issues with relevant groups.  
 
Can cover a variety of groups, allowing for 
different aspects and perspectives to be taken 
into consideration.  
 

47



15 
 

Use of social media  
to notify followers 
of upcoming 
involvement 
opportunities 

Provide update posts 
on relevant social 
media platforms to 
inform those who 
follow the council of 
upcoming 
consultations  

Provides an opportunity to encourage and 
facilitate discussion with interested parties 
 
SKDCs Twitter and Facebook accounts both have 
a wide reach of residents, so may inform those 
who have been identified as hard to reach. 
 

Keep those on the 
dedicated mailing 
list informed of 
upcoming 
involvement 
opportunities.   
 

Public consultation 
notices will be sent to 
all those on the Local 
Plan mailing list via 
email or post.  

Formal means of communication with both 
statutory and non statutory consultees on the 
Councils database; ensures communication is 
received by those who have asked.  

Provide response 
forms to 
consultations.  

Ensure that online and 
paper* response 
forms are available for 
use by individuals who 
wish to comment on 
the consultation.  
 

Comments can be submitted to the Council 
quickly at any time of day.  
 
Follows a standard format which allows 
responses to be copied accurately into databases 
for review after the consultation has finished.  
 

* Assuming that this method can be safely carried out in a way which is consistent with Covid19 
restrictions. This may mean ensuring social distancing measures are in place and through the use 
of web base, virtual and electronic formats.  
 

**.  Documents requested in an alternative format (due to a disability or language differential) will 
not be charged.  

 
 
16.2. Further details of how these methods will be applied to Development Plan Documents 

(DPDs) supplementary planning documents (SPDs) and Neighbourhood Plans (SPDs) 
are shown in Appendices 2 & 3. 

 
16.3. Details about when consultation will take place on each DPD and SPD document are 

shown in the Local Development Scheme (LDS) which shows progress against the 
key milestones for document preparation  

 
16.4. Further information and advice on the planning process is available through a number 

of sources (see Appendix 4). 
  

48

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/local-development-scheme/


16 
 

Community involvement in Planning Applications 
 

17. Consulting on Planning Applications 
 
17.1. The Council determines around 2,000 planning applications each year, most of which 

are received electronically, and which range from householder extensions and Listed 
Building Consents to major new residential, retail or office developments. As part of the 
process to determine these applications, it is important that the community and other 
stakeholders have the opportunity to get involved, to help shape the areas where they 
live, work and spend their leisure time. 

 
17.2. Planning legislation sets out the minimum requirements for publicising and consulting 

the community and stakeholders on planning applications. This section sets out our 
interpretation of how we will meet those requirements through the development 
management process, through consultation at pre-application, application and appeal 
stages. 

 

18. Pre-Application Advice and Consultation 
 
18.1. The Council encourages pre-application discussions for certain types of development 

before making a formal application. The objective of these discussions is to establish 
whether the principle of the development is acceptable and to clarify the format, type 
and level of detail required to enable the Council to determine the application. 

 
18.2. The Council has formal procedures in place for dealing with pre-application planning 

advice. This allows the Council to dedicate time with applicants to improve the quality 
of development schemes. Further guidance on pre-application advice is available on 
the Council’s web site14 

 

19. Pre-Application Consultation by Developers 
 
19.1. For major applications the Council would strongly encourage applicants, not already 

required to do so by other requirements of the Town & Country Planning Acts, to carry 
out their own meaningful pre-application consultation and seek involvement from 
stakeholders. This may take the form of a public meeting and/or exhibition in the locality 
of the proposal, a dedicated website providing information on the proposal, additional 
neighbourhood notification or press coverage but it should be effective in bringing draft 
proposals to the attention of the public, parish councils and other parties in the area that 
may be affected by the proposal. 

 
19.2. Similarly, early engagement with key consultees is encouraged, allowing the 

opportunity for consultees to make comments on the proposal, and allowing key issues 
to be addressed prior to any planning application being submitted. Please note that 
some consultees have their own specific requirements relating to pre-application 
engagement. 

 

20. Notification/Publicity of Planning Applications 
 
20.1. Once a planning application has been received and validated by the Development 

Management team, there is a process of publicity and consultation that is undertaken 
to ensure that stakeholders and the community have the opportunity to have their say 

 
14 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8172 

49

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8172


17 
 

on the development proposed. 
 
20.2. A significant proportion of the applications submitted to the Council are received 

electronically via the Planning Portal. The Council is committed to efficient and modern 
ways of working and communication, and places particular emphasis on the use of 
electronic means and technology. Most notification is done electronically wherever 
possible, and the Council maintains a website which hosts its formal planning register. 

 
20.3. Notification and consultation of planning applications (of all types) are required by 

planning legislation, in particular by the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 201515. Some applications require special (or 
additional) publicity requirements due to their particular characteristics (eg applications 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement). The Council is committed to meeting 
these legislative requirements. See Appendix 1 for details of relevant consultation 
bodies. 

 
20.4. Appendix 4 sets out the Council’s approach to the publicity/notification to be given for 

planning applications. 
 
20.5. A degree of flexibility is required in order to fit the variety of application types received 

by the Council and to allow for an appropriate level of engagement. 
 
20.6. Due to the coronavirus outbreak, restrictions have been placed nationwide on both the 

public and Local Authorities. The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure, Listed Buildings and Environmental Impact Assessment) 
(England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 202016 state that if the Council is 
unable to satisfy the requirements for publicity of a planning application because it is 
not reasonably practicable to do so for reasons connected to the effects of coronavirus, 
including restrictions on movement, then the council is considered to have discharged 
its obligations provided it has taken reasonable steps to inform any persons who are 
likely to have an interest in the application. 

 

21. Weekly list 
 
21.1. Whilst not a statutory requirement, the Council produces a weekly list of planning 

applications it has received17. This is made available on the Council web site and is 
used as part of our consultation process. 

 

22. Press notices 
 
22.1. In addition to the above, for some types of application (see Appendix 4) a publicity 

notice outlining some basic details on the application will be placed in the local press 
covering the area for the application site. 

 

23. Parish and Town Councils 
 
23.1. All Parish and Town Councils are notified of relevant applications within their area. This 

is done electronically by email. 
 
23.2. As all applications are made available to view on the Council’s website, paper copies of 

 
15 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made  
16 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/505/contents/made  
17 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=9229  

50

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/505/contents/made
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=9229


18 
 

applications are not provided to Parish and Town Councils. For the larger and most 
sensitive applications (defined as those submitted with an Environmental Statement - 
ES) the Council will endeavour to provide the Parish or Town Council with a paper copy 
of the documents. 

 
23.3. For other specific cases, Parish and Town Councils can request paper copies of an 

application subject to a charge reflective of the costs involved. 
 

24. Neighbouring owner/occupier Notifications & Site Notices 
 
24.1. The requirement for notification of neighbouring owners or occupiers, and for site 

notices are set out within planning legislation. In most cases, the approach to notification 
is left to the discretion of the Local Planning Authority, and either requires notification 
or a site notice to be displayed. The Council’s approach to these requirements is set 
out within Appendix 4. 

 
24.2. The extent of neighbour notification is at the discretion of the case officer (especially in 

rural areas). In practice, this normally means those properties bordering an application 
site or which the case officer assesses as most likely to be affected by a proposal. The 
Council will only notify in writing the owner and occupiers of such properties. In 
circumstances where land adjoins the site and the owner is not known a site notice will 
usually be displayed. 

 
24.3. Where a site notice is displayed, it will be located on or near to the land that is subject 

to the application, and multiple site notices may be displayed. Where a site notice is 
taken down, destroyed or defaced during the determination of the application; it is at 
the Councils discretion whether a replacement is displayed based upon the remaining 
extent of the consultation period or the determination period of the application and the 
extent of other forms of notification. 

 
24.4. Formal notification is not a prerequisite to enable interested parties to comment on an 

application. 
 
24.5. Interested parties are invited to inspect the application online via the Councils website 

18 access to which is also provided at the Council Offices. In specific circumstances 
such as where an interested party is disabled or elderly and unable to get to the Council 
Offices or access the plans online, we can provide them with a free copy of the plans. 
Such requests should be made to the Case Officer in the first instance. Copies of plans 
are available to others at a charge, reflective of the costs involved. 
 

25. Ward Councillors 
 
25.1. All Ward Councillors will be notified of relevant applications within their area.  This will 

be done electronically as all applications are made available to view on the Council’s 
website, paper copies of applications are not normally provided to Ward Councillors. 

 
 

26. Commenting on Planning Applications 
 
26.1. Interested parties are invited to make comments within a specified period (the 

consultation period), usually within 21 days. We continue to accept comments until the 

 
18 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8170#/  

51

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8170#/


19 
 

application is determined, so in many cases this will be longer than 21 days. However, 
we cannot guarantee that comments received after the consultation period has closed 
and after production of the recommendation has been commenced, will be formally 
considered as part of the determination of an application. It is therefore important to 
ensure that any comments are received by the Council in a timely manner. 

 
26.2. We encourage people to respond online through the Council’s website. This allows 

interested parties to provide comments at a time which suits them and also allows us to 
receive and process comments more efficiently. Alternatively, comments can be 
submitted by email or post. We will not acknowledge comments received. 

 
26.3. All comments must be made in writing and contain the name and address of the author. 

We cannot consider anonymous comments. Signatures are not required and in the 
interests of Data Protection you are encouraged not to supply them. A telephone 
number is sometimes useful in case the Council or an applicant/agent needs to make 
contact to discuss your comments, however, this is not essential. Additionally, you 
should note that it is not possible for us to respond directly to comments received. 
Details on how comments are considered within the determination process are set out 
below. 

26.4. All comments received are public documents and will be made available to view by third 
parties (this includes providing copies of comments directly to them). Some information 
cannot be kept confidential, including the name and address of the author. Sensitive 
personal information (signatures, email addresses and phone numbers) is redacted. All 
comments received may be provided to other bodies, such as the Planning 
Inspectorate, should the application proceed to Appeal. 

 
26.5. As a result of changes in Data Protection legislation and the introduction of the General 

Data Protection Regulations in May 2018, along with other factors relating to the 
commenting on applications and improvements to methods of working and electronic 
communication, the Council will be reviewing how parties comment on applications and 
how such information is retained and used. A further document dealing specifically data 
protection issues will be produced in due course alongside this document. This will be 
made publicly available and will be regularly reviewed. 

 
26.6. The Council will consider all responses received as a result of its consultations on 

planning applications where the issues raised are material planning considerations. We 
will not re-publicise comments received in their totality within reports or 
recommendations and will summarise all comments received, and material planning 
considerations raised. 

 
26.7. The Council can only consider objections or comments which raise relevant planning 

issues (also known as material planning considerations), for example loss of light or the 
effect a proposal might have on the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 
Some examples of material considerations and non-material considerations can be 
found below (this list is not exhaustive). 

 

Material Considerations Non-Material Considerations 

National and local planning polices Issues considered under Building Regulations 

Planning history and previous appeal 
decisions 

Land/boundary disputes, including rights of 
access 

Case law Opposition to business competition 

52



20 
 

Impact on sunlight, outlook, privacy and 
amenity 

Loss of property value 

Highways issues Loss of view 

Effect on listed building or conservation area Opposition to principle of development if 
permission has been granted by an outline 

application or appeal decision 

 
26.8. A considerable amount of negotiation takes place on a large number of applications, 

particularly major ones. Steering development towards a more acceptable form is a 
crucial part of the development management process. This dialogue between planning 
officers, developers and their professional advisors and the local community is 
something which the Government and the Council actively encourages. 

 
26.9. In a number of cases, proposals will generate much public interest and letters of 

objection. Often planning officers will advise developers that amendments to their 
applications will result in a better quality of development, which may indeed overcome 
objectors’ concerns. However, it is important to note that planning decisions are made 
on the basis of material planning considerations (many of which may be raised by 
objectors) but not the number of objections received. 

 

27. Re-notification 
 
27.1. In some instances, applications may be amended, or additional supplementary 

information submitted to the Council during the life of the application. Where this 
happens, and it materially alters a proposal, the Council will undertake a further 
consultation and notification exercise, commensurate with the type and size of 
amendments or the level of information submitted. Any additional publicity on changes 
to an application will be at the discretion of the case officer and will depend on the 
degree of change from the original submission. Any additional information received will 
be placed on the Council’s website. 

 
27.2. For listed building applications, or applications within conservation areas, significant 

amendments will be re-advertised. 
 

28. Determination of Planning Applications 
 
28.1. The majority of planning applications are determined by planning officers under 

delegated powers. However, some applications such as those which are larger scale, 
strategic or controversial in nature are determined by the Council's Development 
Management Committee. 

 
28.2. Where a determination may be made under delegated powers, we will endeavour to do 

so. A report will be produced and will be available to view online when the decision is 
issued. The report will clearly set out the reasons for the decision that has been made, 
along with the consideration of relevant factors including development plan policies, 
neighbourhood plan polices, and other material considerations including any comments 
received. 

 
28.3. Meetings of the Council’s Development Management Committee are held 

approximately every 4 weeks. Where an application is required to be determined by the 
Council’s Development Management Committee, a report will be included on the 

53



21 
 

Committee agenda which is available to view on the Council’s web site19 and is 
published one week prior to the Committee meeting. 

 
28.4. Applicants and any other persons who have made representations on an application to 

be heard by Committee will be notified. The Council’s policy on public speaking at the 
Development Management Committee is available on the Council’s web site20 
 

 

29. Role of Elected Members 
 
29.1. One of the key purposes of the planning system is to manage development in the public 

interest. In performing this role, planning necessarily affects land and property interests, 
particularly the impact on adjoining land and development and the quality of their 
settings. It is important, therefore, that planning authorities make planning decisions 
affecting these interests openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable 
reasons. 

 
29.2. People affected by a planning decision or other planning proposals may often seek to 

influence it through an approach to their elected District Councillor or to a Councillor on 
the relevant decision-making committee. This lobbying is normal and a part of the 
political process. Members should advise those who are lobbying that they should 
speak or write to the relevant officer, in order that their opinions can be included in the 
officer’s report to committee. Councillors are guided by Codes of Conduct. Elected 
members have the right to attend any Development Management Committee meeting 
and may speak on an objector’s behalf, highlighting valid planning considerations. 

 

30. Notification of Decision on Planning Applications 
 
30.1. Planning Practice Guidance and planning legislation requires specific parties to be 

notified of planning decisions. The Council approaches this by providing all of its 
decisions on the website (whether or not it was determined by officers under delegated 
powers or at Committee). Decisions, if taken at Committee, are also publicised in the 
committee minutes, also available on the Council’s website. 

 

31. Planning Appeals 
 
31.1. The planning system includes a right for the applicants to seek an Appeal to the 

Planning Inspectorate (PINS), acting on behalf of the Secretary of State. 
 
31.2. An appeal may be submitted by the applicant where permission has been refused or 

permitted with conditions which the applicant considers to be unacceptable. There is 
also a right of appeal if the application has not been determined within the relevant time 
limit. Third parties do not have the right to appeal planning decisions. 

 
31.3. All those who were notified of the original application or submitted comments will be 

notified in writing of the appeal and how to make their views known to the Planning 
Inspectorate (PINS). Comments received by the Council as part of the determination of 
the original application will also be sent to the Planning Inspectorate. 

 
31.4. Further notifications may be undertaken by the Council on behalf of the Planning 

Inspectorate depending on the type and nature of the Appeal. For example, Appeals 
 

19 http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=165&amp;Year=0  
20 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=9234  

54

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=165&amp;Year=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=9234


22 
 

decided by public inquiry require publication in the press (indicating the date, time and 
location of the inquiry) and a site notice will be posted. 

 
31.5. The determination of an Appeal is outside of the control of the Council. The processing 

requirements, including the timescales, for the Planning Inspectorate are set out within 
planning legislation. The Planning Inspector will consider the evidence and decide 
whether to allow or dismiss the appeal. They will inform the Council and interested 
parties of the outcome and place a copy of the decision on the Planning Inspectorate 
website. Once received, a copy of the decision will be placed on the Council’s website. 
This decision is binding on the Council (although it can be challenged on a point of law 
in the High Court). 

 

32. Prior Approval Notifications 
 
32.1. Prior approval means that a developer has to seek approval from the local planning 

authority that specified elements of the development are acceptable before work can 
proceed. The matters for prior approval vary depending on the type of development and 
these are set out in full in the relevant Parts in Schedule 2 to the General Permitted 
Development Order. A local planning authority cannot consider any other matters when 
determining a prior approval application. 

 
32.2. The Council can consider whether prior approval of certain details is required in 

advance of a formal decision being issued. There are multiple kinds of prior approval 
notifications, with different determination periods. If no information is requested by the 
Council within these timescales, the application is approved. 

 

33. Designation of New or Amended Conservation Areas 
 
33.1. Conservation area boundaries itself are a statutory designation, and there is a duty 

‘from time to time’ to review them below sets out what below of what the statutory 
requirements are and what the Council will do additionally. 

 
Minimum statutory requirements 
 

• Proposals for preservation and enhancement of conservation area must be submitted 
for consideration at a public meeting to the local area which it relates 

 

• The LPA must give regard to any views expressed by those who attended the meeting 
 

• Notify the Secretary of State and Historic England 
 

• Publicise the intention to designate by a notice placed in the London Gazette and a 
local newspaper.  

 

• (We must follow the same publicity procedures to vary or cancel a designation as 
required to designate.) 

 
Additional consultation 
 

• 6 weeks consultation 
 

• Consult properties in existing and proposed boundaries 
 

55



23 
 

• Publish on website 
 

• Consult Heritage and community organisations 
 

• Public meetings/exhibitions 
 
Additional Notification 
 

• Notify properties in new boundaries 
 

• Notify Heritage and community organisations 
 

34. Works to Protected Trees 
 
34.1. Some trees are protected by Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs). Where trees are 

covered by TPOs, any works to them require statutory notification to the Council. 
Applications for works to TPO trees will be determined within eight weeks from the date 
of receipt. Delegated authority is available for officers to determine the application. 

 
34.2. There are no requirements to undertake consultation in respect of applications for 

works, however, neighbours will be notified of applications at the discretion of the case 
officer. 

 
34.3. Following a decision, the decision notice will be made available online for public 

inspection. 
 
34.4. Proposals for works to trees in Conservation Areas will be determined within six weeks 

from the date of receipt and if consent is not appropriate, the Local Planning Authority 
will consider placing a TPO on the tree(s). We will follow the same approach with these 
applications as for works to a TPO tree as identified above. 

 

35. Hedgerow Removal Applications 
 
35.1. In some cases, the removal of certain hedgerows requires permission. Applications 

under the Hedgerow Regulations 1997 will be determined within six weeks of receipt of 
a removal notice. 

 
35.2. Consultation letters will be sent out to the Parish Council, and any other relevant bodies 

at the officer’s discretion. 
 

36. Enforcement 
 
36.1. Most enforcement cases arise following a referral from a member of the public. All 

referrals are treated confidentially. There is no consultation with the public on 
enforcement cases. Cases are investigated in accordance with the Councils planning 
Enforcement policy, and take into consideration national legislation and policy, case law 
and best practice. Many cases can be resolved or regularised through the submission 
of a planning application which is then determined in the normal way as identified by 
earlier sections of this document. 

 
36.2. We do not make Enforcement cases publicly available, save for those which form part 

of the Councils formal Enforcement Register, which relate to those where formal notices 
were produced. 

56



24 
 

 
36.3. Further information on enforcement is available on the Council's web site21  

 
21 http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8171  

57

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8171


25 
 

Appendix 1: Consultation Bodies 
 
When preparing DPD’s and SPDs, the Council will seek to engage and consult, where 
appropriate, with the general public and the wider community. At an early stage, it is important 
to involve the local community in the preparation of DPDs and SPDs as it is essential to 
achieve local ownership of the planning policies for South Kesteven  
 
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 
specify a number of organisations that must be consulted. These organisations are referred 
to as ‘specific consultation bodies’ and ‘general consultation bodies.’  
 
The lists below refer only to “types of group” rather than naming every individual group and 
organisation. This is to ensure that the SCI does not contain out of date information. Also note 
that these lists are not exhaustive and can be updated at any point.  
 
Specific consultation bodies include Town and Parish Councils and Parish Meetings, Ward 
Councillors, neighbouring Local Authorities, utilities and health providers and organisations 
such as Historic England, Environment Agency, and Natural England. This is in addition to 
any other relevant statutory body defined in the regulations.  
 
General consultation bodies, include a range of community groups and organisations 
representing South Kestevens interests, whom the Council considers it appropriate to consult 
on comprising of: 
 

• Voluntary bodies 

• Different racial, ethnic or national groups 

• Different religious groups 

• Disabled persons groups 

• Business groups 
 
Other consultees have been identified in addition to specific and general consultation bodies 
to ensure that local groups, organisations and individuals in South Kesteven have the 
opportunity to become involved in the preparation of the Local Plan.  These are grouped under 
the following headings: 
 

• Amenity groups  • Landowners/Agents 

• Built Environment • Minerals & Waste Operators 

• Community • Natural Environment 

• Economy • Older Persons Groups 

• Education • Service Providers 

• Ethnic Minority Groups Including 
Gypsies & Travellers 

• Sports & Leisure 

• Healthcare • Transport 

• Housing  

 

Engaging underrepresented Groups.  
 
The Council’s vision is to engage with all sections of the community, but some sections of the 
community are not usually involved in the planning process. Consultation will be helped by 
ensuring, as far as possible, that documents are produced in a clear, concise and 
understandable manner.  
 
The groups identified as falling into this category are considered below;  

58



26 
 

 

• Young people 

• People from ethnic minority backgrounds  

• People with disabilities 

• The elderly 

• Rural communities 

• Traveller communities 

• The homeless 
 
The Council will undertake an Equality Impact Assessment on all new policy documents to 
ensure due regard to the general duty of the Equality Act 2010 has been given. 
 
 
‘Clinically Extremely Vulnerable – Covid 19 

 
There are currently Government Covid-19 guidelines in place to protect people defined on 
medical grounds as extremely vulnerable. The guidance advises those identified as “clinically 
extremely vulnerable” to meet outside, if possible, therefore, their ability to view consultation 
documents and make representations may be hindered.  As such the Council will therefore 
seek to proactively engage with those residents who are “Clinically Extremely Vulnerable” to 
support them in accessing and responding to consultations during the period of Covid 19.  
Likewise, if shielding of the most vulnerable is resumed the Council will offer the same level 
of support.’ 
 
 
 

59



27 
 

Appendix 2: Consultation on Local Plan Documents 
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified  Period of consultation/notice period 

Preparation of a Local Plan 
(Reg 18)  
(There may be multiple 
regulation 18 consultations 
throughout plan 
preparations)  
Alternative consultation 
names;  

Distribute information to all Town and Parish 
Councils via email or letter (where 
appropriate) setting out –  

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to. 

 
Keep those on the dedicated mailing list 
informed of upcoming involvement 
opportunities Those considered to have an 
interest will be informed by email or letter 
setting out: 

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to. 
 

 
Draft documents will be available for viewing 
on the Council’s website alongside relevant 
evidence base. - Response forms will also be 
created and available to fill in via the website 
or printed off and returned to the council.   

 
Provide informative press releases to local 
newspapers – interested readers will be 
informed of the following;  

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed (both 

hardcopies and online)  
  

Provide press release of Public Notice of 
Consultation which sets out–  

Copies of draft documents may be 
purchasable via request (Prices will be 
avabilble on the council’s website)  
 
Public exhibitions will be held where 
practical & appropriate, if the council 
feels the draft consultation will 
benefit – Locations, times and dates 
will all be publicised beforehand.  

 
Draft documents may be made 
available for public inspection at the 
council’s primary (Grantham) and 
other office locations (Stamford, 
Bourne, The Deepings) Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of 
Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
Make documents available for public 
viewing at libraries across the District 
– This excludes mobile libraries. Could 
be temporarily suspended in the light 
of Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
Production of information leaflet 
around draft consultation documents 
to be distributed at public exhibitions 
or households.  

 
Provide informative press releases to, 
local radio stations, TV and other 
forms of Digital Media. Informing 
listeners/ viewers of  

- the consultation periods 
- the plan stage 
- How the consultation can be 

responded to. 
 

Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- the consultation period 

Those bodies, businesses or persons 
that the Council considers having an 
interest in the Plan, such bodies will 
include;  

• specific consultation bodies 
 

• duty to cooperate bodies  
 

• General consultation bodies 
 

• All Parish/ Town Councils  
 

Any individual/ group on the Councils 
notification mailing list.  
 
Engaging other consultees and those 
identified “hard to reach groups” will 
be addressed through the various 
consultation methods identified in the 
first two rows.  

There will be at least one ‘formal’ consultation period 
during the plan preparation, normally with a minimum 
consultation period of 6 weeks (up to a maximum of 
12 weeks 
 
Depending on the complexity of the Local Plan there 
may be more than one consultation period during the 
plan preparation stage, normally with a minimum 
consultation period of 6 weeks (up to a maximum of 
12 weeks) 
 
Informal and on-going consultee involvement in plan 
preparation will be possible up to its publication 
 

Issues & Options/ 
Preferred Options (Call for 
Sites)  

Draft Local Plan 
Consultation 

60



28 
 

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to. 

 
Provide a copy of relevant draft 
documentation by email to members of the 
public who request one.  
 
Provide a copy of relevant draft 
documentation by post to members of the 
public who request one. (Requests must be 
reasonable in nature and the Council may 
charge for the printing and sending of the 
documents). Could be temporarily suspended 
in the light of Covid-19 restrictions. 

- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

 
Provide Information in the Council’s 
newsletter (SK Today/Parish Update) - 
Those considered to have an interest 
will be informed of the following;  

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed ( 

both hardcopies and online) 
  

Meet with Stakeholder groups 
Engagement with key stakeholder 
groups will be conducted around key 
issues at an early stage in draft 
document preparation. These groups 
will then be invited to comment.  

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Publication of a local plan 
(Reg 19) 
Alternative consultation 
names; 

 
Provide press release of formal Public Notice 
of Consultation. Public notice will inform 
readers of  

- the consultation period 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

- How representations can be made  
- Other additional statutory 

information 
- How the planning team can be 

contacted  
- Plan Stage 

 
Publication documents will be available for 
viewing on the Council’s website alongside 
relevant evidence base. - Response forms will 
also be created and available to fill in via the 
website or printed off and returned to the 
council 

 
Copies of publication documents will be 
purchasable via request 

Provide informative press releases to 
local newspapers – interested readers 
will be informed of the following;  

- the consultation period 
- Plan Stage 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(both hardcopies and online)  
 
Provide informative press releases to 
local radio stations, TV and other 
forms of Digital Media. Informing 
listeners/ viewers of  

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- How the consultation can be 

responded to. 
 
Publication documents may be made 
available for public inspection at the 
council’s primary (Grantham) and 
other office locations (Stamford, 
Bourne, The Deepings) Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of 
Covid-19 restrictions. 

All those notified at plan preparation 
stage (Regulation 18) will be notified of 
the publication document – this 
includes  

 

• specific consultation bodies 
 

• duty to cooperate bodies  
 

• general consultation bodies 
 

• All Parish/ Town Councils 
 

• Any individual/ group on the  

• Councils notification mailing list  
 

Any additional consultee who 
responded to a regulation 18 draft plan 
preparation consultation.  
 

Statutory period of at least 6 weeks for any person to 
make a representation on the proposed Local Plan. 
 
 

Formal Submission/ Pre-
Submission 

 

 

 

 

61



29 
 

 
A Public Notice will be sent to general and 
specific consultation bodies as required. In 
addition they will also be sent to any 
individual/ body who is currently on the 
Local Plan mailing list or who responded to 
the reg 18 consultations. The Public Notice of 
Consultation will include;  

- the consultation period 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

- How representations can be made  
- Other additional statutory 

information 
- How the planning team can be 

contacted  
- copy of the statement of 

representation procedure 
A Public Notice of will also be sent to all 
parish and town councils across the district, 
as well as those bodies identified within the 
duty to co-operate. A hardcopy of the public 
notice will also be displayed at the Council’s 
primary office (Grantham) 
 
Provide informative press releases to local 
newspapers – interested readers will be 
informed of the following;  

- the consultation period 
- Plan Stage 
- how the plan can be viewed (both 

hardcopies and online 
 

Provide a copy of relevant submission 
documentation by email to members of the 
public who request one.  
 
Provide a copy of relevant submission 
documentation by post to members of the 
public who request one. (Requests must be  
reasonable in nature and the Council may 
charge for the printing and sending of the 
documents). Could be temporarily suspended 
in the light of Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
 

 
 

Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

 
Make documents available for public 
viewing at libraries across the District 
– This excludes mobile libraries. Could 
be temporarily suspended in the light 
of Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
Meetings with interested Stakeholder 
groups 
 
Provide Information in the Council’s 
newsletter (SK Today/ Parish update) - 
Those considered to have an interest 
will be informed of the following;  

- the consultation period 
- Plan Stage  
- how the plan can be viewed 

(both hardcopies and online)  
 

62



30 
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Submission of Plan to 
Secretary of State (Reg 22) 

The submission plan and required 
accompanying documents to be sent in 
paper form and electronically to the 
Secretary of State. 

 
The Submission Plan will be available for 
viewing on the Council’s website alongside 
its relevant evidence base. - Response forms 
will also be created and available to fill in via 
the website or printed off and returned to the 
council 

 
A Public Notice will be sent to general and 
specific consultation bodies as required. In 
addition they will also be sent to any 
individual/ body who is currently on the 
Local Plan mailing list or who responded to 
the reg 19 consultation. The Public Notice of 
Consultation will include;  

- The Submission of the LP to the 
Secretary of State  

- Where/ how the Submission Plan 
can be inspected. 

- how the plan can be viewed 
(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

A Public Notice of will also be sent to all 
parish and town councils across the district, 
as well as those bodies identified within the 
duty to co-operate. A hardcopy of the public 
notice will also be displayed at the Council’s 
primary office (Grantham) 
 
Provide press release of formal Public 
Notice. Public notice will inform readers of  

- The Submission of the LP to the 
Secretary of State  

- Where/ how the Submission Plan 
can be inspected. 

- how the plan can be viewed 
(including an electronic copy or link 
where relevant) 

 

 
Submission documents may be made 
available for public inspection at the 
council’s primary (Grantham) and 
other office locations (Stamford, 
Bourne, The Deepings) Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of 
Covid-19 restrictions. 
 

 
Make submission documents available 
for public viewing at libraries across 
the District – This excludes mobile 
libraries. Could be temporarily 
suspended in the light of Covid-19 
restrictions. 
 
Provide informative press releases to 
local newspapers – interested readers 
will be informed of the following; 

- The Submission of the LP to 
the Secretary of State  

- Where/ how the Submission 
Plan can be inspected  

 
Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- The Submission of the LP to 
the Secretary of State  

- Where/ how the Submission 
Plan can be inspected  

- how the plan can be viewed 
(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

 
 

Any individual/ body who submitted a 
representation at the plan publication 
(Reg 19) stage.  
 
All those notified at draft plan 
preparation and publication stage will 
again be notified that the plan has 
been submitted and where it can be 
inspected.  

 
Any additional person/ body who has 
specifically asked to be notified when 
the plan is submitted 

 
 

 

Not a consultation stage 

63



31 
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Independent Examination 
(Reg 24) 

A Public Notice will be sent to general and 
specific consultation bodies as required. In 
addition, they will also be sent to any 
individual/ body who is currently on the 
Local Plan mailing list or who responded to 
the reg 19 consultation. The Public Notice of 
Consultation will include;  

- The date, time and place where the 
hearing(s) sessions  

- The name of the appointed 
inspector  

- Any other relevant statutory 
information 

A Public Notice of will also be sent to all 
parish and town councils across the district, 
as well as those bodies identified within the 
duty to co-operate. A hardcopy of the public 
notice will also be displayed at the Council’s 
primary office (Grantham)  
 
Details of the examination will be available 
for viewing on the Council’s website.   
 
Provide press release of formal Public 
Notice. Public notice will inform readers of  

- The date, time and place where the 
hearing(s) sessions  

- The name of the appointed 
inspector  

- Any other relevant statutory 
information 

 
 
 

Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- The date, time and place 
where the hearing(s) sessions  

- The name of the appointed 
inspector  

- Any other relevant statutory 
information 

 
Provide informative press releases to 
local newspapers – interested readers 
will be informed of the following 

- where the hearing(s) sessions  
- The name of the appointed 

inspector  
- Any other relevant statutory 

information 
 

Any person with an outstanding 
representation from the plan 
publication (Reg 19) stage.  
 
All those notified at draft plan 
preparation and publication stage will 
again be notified of the independent 
examination.  
 
Any additional person/ body who has 
specifically asked to be notified around 
the Local Plan examination. 
 
The Independent Inspector will also 
give the opportunity for a number of 
representors to appear before and 
speak during the hearing sessions.  

 

Notification about examination at least 6 weeks 
before the opening of the hearing 
 

A further 6-week consultation period will be required 
if there are main modifications (or as required by the 
Inspector) 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Main Modifications (Reg 24) 
(May not always be 
required)  

A Public Notice will be sent to general and 
specific consultation bodies as required. In 
addition, they will also be sent to any 
individual/ body who is currently on the 
Local Plan mailing list or who responded to 
the reg 19 consultation. The Public Notice of 
Consultation will include;  

 
Main modifications document may be 
made available for public inspection at 
the council’s primary (Grantham) and 
other office locations (Stamford, 
Bourne, The Deepings) Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of 

Any person with an outstanding 
representation from the plan 
publication (Reg 19) stage.  

 
All those notified at draft plan 
preparation and publication stage will 
again be notified of the Main 

6-week consultation period if there are main 
modifications (or as required by the Inspector) 

64



32 
 

- Information about the main 
modifications  

- consultation dates 
- how the modifications can be 

viewed (including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

- How the modifications can be 
commented upon 

A Public Notice of will also be sent to all 
parish and town councils across the district, 
as well as those bodies identified within the 
duty to co-operate. A hardcopy of the public 
notice will also be displayed at the Council’s 
primary office (Grantham)  
 
The Main Modifications will be available for 
viewing on the Council’s website - Response 
forms will also be created and available to fill 
in via the website or printed off and returned 
to the council 

 
Provide press release of formal Public 
Notice. Public notice will inform readers of  

- Information about the main 
modifications  

- consultation dates 
- how the modifications can be 

viewed 
- How the modifications can be 

commented upon.  
 

Provide a copy of relevant Main 
Modifications documentation by email to 
members of the public who request one.  
 
Provide a copy of relevant Main 
Modifications documentation by post to 
members of the public who request one. 
(Requests must be reasonable in nature and 
the Council may charge for the printing and 
sending of the documents). Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of Covid-
19 restrictions. 

 

Covid-19 restrictions. 
 

 
Make Main Modification document 
available for public viewing at libraries 
across the District – This excludes 
mobile libraries. Could be temporarily 
suspended in the light of Covid-19 
restrictions. 
 
Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- Information about the main 
modifications  

- consultation dates 
- how the modifications can be 

viewed (including an 
electronic copy or link where 
relevant) 

- How the modifications can be 
commented upon 

 
Provide informative press releases to 
local newspapers – interested readers 
will be informed of the following 

- Information about the main 
modifications  

- consultation dates 
- how the modifications can be 

viewed.  
- How the modifications can be 

commented upon 

Modification consultation.  
 
Any additional person/ body who has 
specifically asked to be notified around 
the Local Plan Main Modifications. 
 

Publication of Inspector’s 
recommendations 
(Regulation 25)  

A Public Notice will be sent to general and 
specific consultation bodies as required. In 
addition, they will also be sent to any 

Provide informative press releases to 
local newspapers – interested readers 
will be informed of the following 

Any person with a representation from 
the plan publication (Reg 19) stage.  

 

Not a consultation stage 

65



33 
 

(Including Inspectors 
Report)  

individual/ body who is currently on the 
Local Plan mailing list or who responded to 
the reg 19 consultation. The Public Notice of 
Consultation will include;  

- Information around the inspector’s 
recommendations 

- how the inspector’s final report can 
be viewed (including an electronic 
copy or link where relevant) 

A Public Notice of will also be sent to all 
parish and town councils across the district, 
as well as those bodies identified within the 
duty to co-operate. A hardcopy of the public 
notice will also be displayed at the Council’s 
primary office (Grantham)  
 
A copy of the Inspector’s final report will be 
available for viewing on the Council’s 
website  

 
Provide press release of formal Public 
Notice. Public notice will inform readers of  

- Information around the inspector’s 
recommendations 

- how the inspector’s final report can 
be viewed  

 
 

Provide a copy of Inspectors Final Report by 
email to members of the public who request 
one.  
 
Provide a copy of Inspectors Final Report by 
post to members of the public who request 
one. (Requests must be reasonable in nature 
and the Council may charge for the printing 
and sending of the documents). Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of Covid-
19 restrictions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

- Information around the 
inspector’s recommendations 

- how the inspector’s final 
report can be viewed  

 
Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- Information around the 
inspector’s recommendations 

- how the inspector’s final 
report can be viewed  

 
A copy of the inspector’s final report 
may be made available for public at 
the council’s primary (Grantham) and 
other office locations (Stamford, 
Bourne, The Deepings) Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of 
Covid-19 restrictions. 
 

All those notified at draft plan 
preparation and publication stage will 
again be notified of the Inspectors 
recommendations and final report  
 
Any additional person/ body who has 
specifically asked to be notified around 
the Inspectors recommendations and 
final report  
 
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

66



34 
 

Adoption of a plan 
(Regulation 26) 

As soon as reasonably possible – A Public 
Notice will be sent to general and specific 
consultation bodies as required. In addition, 
they will also be sent to any individual/ body 
who is currently on the Local Plan mailing list 
or who responded to the reg 19 consultation. 
The Public Notice of Consultation will 
include;  

- Information around the adoption of 
the Local Plan  

- How the adopted Local Plan and 
accompanying documents can be 
viewed (including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

A Public Notice of will also be sent to all 
parish and town councils across the district, 
as well as those bodies identified within the 
duty to co-operate. A hardcopy of the public 
notice will also be displayed at the Council’s 
primary office (Grantham) May require 
appointments to be made 

 
A Copy of the adoption statement will be 
sent via email to the Secretary of State and 
to anyone who has specifically asked to be 
notified and have provided an email address 
 
A copy of the adoption statement will be 
available for viewing on the Council’s 
website.   
 

Provide informative press releases to 
local newspapers – interested readers 
will be informed of the following 

- Information around the 
adoption of the Local Plan  

- How the adopted Local Plan 
and accompanying 
documents can be viewed 
(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

 
Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- Information around the 
adoption of the Local Plan  

- How the adopted Local Plan 
and accompanying 
documents can be viewed 
(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

 

The Secretary of State 
 
Any person with a representation from 
the plan publication (Reg 19) stage.  

 
All those notified at draft plan 
preparation and publication stage will 
again be notified around the Local 
Plans adoption   
 
Any additional person/ body who has 
specifically asked to be notified around 
the Local Plans adoption.  
 

Not a consultation stage 

 
  67



35 
 

Appendix 3: Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified  Period of consultation/notice period 

Preparation and 
Publication of Draft SPD 
(Regulation 12) 

Keep those on the dedicated mailing list 
informed of upcoming involvement 
opportunities Those considered to have an 
interest will be informed by email or letter 
setting out: 

- the consultation period 
- how the SPD be viewed (including 

an electronic copy or link where 
relevant) 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to. 

 
 

 
Draft SPD document will be available for 
viewing on the Council’s website alongside 
relevant evidence base. - Response forms will 
also be created and available to fill in via the 
website or printed off and returned to the 
council 

 
Provide a copy of draft documentation by 
email to members of the public who request 
one.  
 
Provide a copy of draft documentation by 
post to members of the public who request 
one. (Requests must be reasonable in nature 
and the Council may charge for the printing 
and sending of the documents). Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of Covid-
19 restrictions. 

 

Draft SPD document may be made 
available for public viewing at the 
council’s primary (Grantham) and 
other office locations (Stamford, 
Bourne, The Deepings) Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of 
Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
Make SPD document available for 
public viewing at libraries across the 
District – This excludes mobile libraries. 
Could be temporarily suspended in the 
light of Covid-19 restrictions. 
 
Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- the consultation period 
- how the SPD be viewed 

(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to.  

 
Distribute information to all Town and 
Parish Councils through existing 
channels via email/letter (where 
appropriate) setting out –  

- the consultation period 
- how the SPD can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to. 

 
Provide informative press releases / 
public notice to local newspapers – 
interested readers will be informed of 
the following 

- the consultation period 
- how the SPD can be viewed 

(including an electronic copy 
or link where relevant) 

Those bodies, businesses or persons 
that the Council considers having an 
interest in the SPD, such bodies will 
include;  

• specific consultation bodies 
 

• duty to cooperate bodies  
 

• General consultation bodies 
 

• Parish/ Town Councils (where 
relevant)  

 
Any individual/ group on the Councils 
notification mailing list.  
Engaging other consultees and those 
identified “hard to reach groups” will 
be addressed through the various 
consultation methods identified in the 
first two rows.  

There will be one ‘formal’ consultation period during 
the preparation, normally with a minimum 
consultation period of 4 weeks 

68



36 
 

- How the consultation can be 
responded to. 

 
 
Meet with Stakeholder groups 
Engagement with key stakeholder 
groups will be conducted around key 
issues at an early stage in draft SPD 
document preparation. These groups 
will then be invited to comment.  
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Adoption of SPD 
(Regulation 14) 

Keep those on the dedicated mailing list 
informed; Those considered to have an 
interest will be informed by email or letter 
setting out: 

- Information around the adopted 
SPD  

- How the Adopted SPD can be 
viewed. 

- Copy of adoption Statement  
 

 
The adopted SPD document along with the 
adoption statement will be available for 
viewing on the Council’s website alongside 
relevant evidence base. - Response forms will 
also be created and available to fill in via the 
website or printed off and returned to the 
council 
 
Provide a copy of the adopted 
documentation by email to members of the 
public who request one.  
 
Provide a copy of adopted documentation by 
post to members of the public who request 
one. (Requests must be reasonable in nature 
and the Council may charge for the printing 
and sending of the documents). Could be 
temporarily suspended in the light of Covid-
19 restrictions. 
 

Adopted SPD document and adoption 
statement may be made available for 
public inspection at the council’s 
primary (Grantham) and other office 
locations (Stamford, Bourne, The 
Deepings) Could be temporarily 
suspended in the light of Covid-19 
restrictions. 
 
 
Provide informative press releases / 
public notice to local newspapers – 
interested readers will be informed of 
the following 

- Information around the 
adopted SPD  

- How the Adopted SPD can be 
viewed. 

 
Make SPD document available for 
public viewing at libraries across the 
District – This excludes mobile libraries. 
Could be temporarily suspended in the 
light of Covid-19 restrictions. 
 
Use of Councils social media to notify 
followers of  

- Information around the 
adopted SPD  

- How the Adopted SPD can be 
viewed.  

Any person with a representation from 
the SPDs Preparation and Publication 
stages.  
 
Any individual/ body who wished to be 
notified around the SPDs adoption.  

 

Not a consultation Stage 

 
  

69



37 
 

Appendix 4: Consultation on Planning Applications 
 

Nature of Development  Regulation Determining publicity.  

For applications accompanied by an Environmental Impact Assessment 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 Article 15 (2)(a) 

Proposals that depart from the Development Plan DMPO 2015 Article 15 (2)(b) 

Development affecting a Right of Way DMPO 2015 Article 15 (2)(c) 

Major Development 

- 10 or more dwellings or site area of 0.5 hectares or more 
 

- 1000m or more of floorspace 
 

- Development carried out on a site having an area of 11 hectares or more 

DMPO 2015 Article 15 (4) 

All other "Planning Applications" DMPO 2015 Article 15 (5) 

Lawful Development Certificates, Works to Trees in Conservation Areas or covered by a Tree 
Preservation Order, Non – Material Amendments, Discharge of Conditions, Certificates of Appropriate 
Alternative Development, Hazardous Substances Consent and Prior Notifications for Agricultural 
Works and Buildings, Demolitions or Railways 

Managed independently by the relevant planning department 

Prior Notifications for Telecommunications. Part 16 of the Town and County Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015. 

Works to trees protected by Tree Preservation Order/within a Conservation Area The Hedgerows Regulations 1997 (or as amended) 

Listed Building Consent Application. Regulation 5 of the LB Regulations. 

Development affecting the setting of a listed building. Section 67 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

Development affecting the character or appearance of a Conservation Area 
Prior notifications for proposed development 
(includes home extensions, agricultural buildings, telecoms etc.) 

Section 73 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

Covid 19 - Due to the coronavirus outbreak, restrictions have been placed nationwide on both the public and Local Authorities. The Town and Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure, Listed Buildings and Environmental Impact Assessment) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 state that if the Council is unable to satisfy the requirements for publicity 

of a planning application because it is not reasonably practicable to do so for reasons connected to the effects of coronavirus, including restrictions on movement, then the council is considered to 

have discharged its obligations provided it has taken reasonable steps to inform any persons who are likely to have an interest in the application. 

 

 
  

70

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/505/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/505/contents/made


38 
 

Appendix 5: Consultation on Neighbourhood Plans 
 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified  Period of consultation/notice period 

Designation of 
Neighbourhood Area 
(Regulation 15) 
 

Publish NP designation application on the 
Council’s website alongside decision notice 
and NP map showing the extent of the Area.  

 
Notify those on the dedicated NP mailing list; 
Those considered to have an interest will be 
informed by email or letter setting out the 
decision of the council to designate the NP 
area.  

 Where appropriate;  
Ward & Portfolio holders  
 
Those who have expressed an 
interested in being notified about any 
NP designations within the South 
Kesteven district area  

 
Any adjoining/ neighbouring Parishes. 
  
Relevant Statutory consultation 
bodies  

6 weeks (only applicable when Designating a forum 
in non-parish areas, or if designation proposals come 
forward for overlapping or modified NP areas) 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods 
that may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Publish Submitted Plan 
(Regulation 16) 

The submitted plan along with relevant 
evidence base will be available for viewing 
on the Council’s website. - Response forms 
will also be created and available to fill in via 
the website or printed off and returned to the 
council 

 
Keep those on the dedicated mailing list 
informed; Those considered to have an 
interest will be informed by email or letter 
setting out: 

- Information around the submitted 
NP  

- How the submitted NP can be 
viewed. (both hardcopy and 
electronic link)  

- How responses can be submitted 
 

 

Submission NP documents may be 
made available for public viewing at 
the council’s principal office location – 
this will be in the Grantham Council 
Office. Could be temporarily suspended 
in the light of Covid-19 restrictions. 
 
Submission NP documents may be 
made available for public viewing at 
selected locations within the NP area – 
this will be where possible and at the 
discretion of the qualifying body.  
Could be temporarily suspended in the 
light of Covid-19 restrictions. 
 

Appropriate Ward & Portfolio holders  
Those who have expressed an 
interested in being notified about any 
NP submissions within the South 
Kesteven district area  
 
Any adjoining/ neighbouring Parishes. 
  
Relevant Statutory consultation 
bodies  
 
Residents / businesses within the NP 
area (where possible). 

A formal 6-week consultation will take place.  

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Publication of Examiners 
Report (Regulation 18 

Examiners report and decision statement will 
be available for viewing on the Council’s 
website.  

 
Keep those on the dedicated mailing list 
informed; Those considered to have an 

 Appropriate Ward and Portfolio 
holders  
Those who have expressed an 
interested in being notified about the 
publications of examiners reports or 
decision statements of NPs within the 

Not a consultation stage 

71



39 
 

interest will be informed by email or letter 
setting out: 

- Information regarding the decision 
statement 

- How the examiner’s report can be 
viewed  

 

South Kesteven district area.  
 

Relevant Statutory consultation 
bodies  
 
Residents / businesses within the NP 
area. (where possible) 

Stage Minimum consultation requirements Additional Consultation Methods that 
may be used (Not exhaustive) 

Who will be notified Period of consultation/notice period 

Making Neighbourhood 
Plan (Regulation 20) 

Copy of the made NP and supporting 
evidence base will be available for viewing 
on the Council’s website.  

 
Keep those on the dedicated mailing list 
informed; Those considered to have an 
interest will be informed by email or letter 
setting out: 

- Notice of the made NP  
- How the made NP can be inspected.  

 

 Appropriate Ward and Portfolio 
holders  
 
Those who have expressed an 
interested in being notified about the 
making of NPs within the South 
Kesteven District area.   

 
 

Not a consultation stage 

 

72



40 
 

Appendix 6: Neighbourhood Planning Protocol 
 

The following is a Statement of the support that the District Council will provide to Town and 
Parish Councils and other Neighbourhood Plan bodies 
 

Purpose of this Protocol 
 

Neighbourhood development plans are normally led by the Parish and Town Councils, 
or, outside of parished areas, neighbourhood forums (qualifying bodies). 
 
Under the Localism Act, South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) has a statutory duty to 
provide advice and assistance to communities choosing to undertake a neighbourhood 
development plan. 
 
Additionally the provisions of the Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 and 2018 
Regulations require SKDC, as local planning authority, to set out in its Statement of 
Community Involvement, the advice and assistance that it will provide to Parish and 
Town Councils in preparing or modifying neighbourhood plans and neighbourhood 
development orders. 
 
The 2018 Regulations also require the Council to notify neighbourhood plan groups 
(Parish and Town Councils) of planning applications or alterations to applications, unless 
the neighbourhood plan group indicate otherwise in writing. 
 
This Protocol outlines the services that SKDC will offer to Town and Parish councils in 
South Kesteven, in order to fulfil these statutory duties and support and guide the 
preparation of neighbourhood development plans, neighbourhood development orders 
and proposals to modify neighbourhood plans. 

 
 

General Support 
 
 

SKDC will: 
 
Maintain a neighbourhood planning page on its website that identifies and provides links 
to key information and guidance about neighbourhood plan making, including 
Neighbourhood Development Orders and other provisions of the Localism Act. 
 
Provide advice and information to help communities understand the neighbourhood 
planning process and the funding, resources and skills that are available to support the 
process. 
 
Offer advice on alternative options available to communities, such as Community Plans, 
to help local people decide which approach(es) is/are right for their area. We 
recommend that communities interested in undertaking neighbourhood planning get in 
touch with SKDC’s Planning Policy Team at the earliest opportunity and prior to any 

73



41 
 

neighbourhood area designation application being made, to discuss the issues and 
approach being considered. It is also recommended that communities who are 
interested in making a neighbourhood development order or that propose to modify a 
made neighbourhood development plan, contact SKDC’s Planning Policy Team at the 
earliest opportunity for advice and to discuss any issues. 
 
Provide advice relating to effective consultation, including ensuring that interested 
parties are involved in the preliminary stages of neighbourhood plan making. 
 
Assist with mapping requests where possible for use at consultation events and 
workshops and for inclusion within draft and final plan documents. Parish councils will 
need to be aware of the Ordnance Survey user agreement prior to this work. 
 
Provide the most up-to-date available evidence base, including the Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment (SHMA) and other evidence information supporting the South 
Kesteven Local Plan, by making them available on the Council’s website. 
 
Provide contact details of statutory consultees and other relevant groups. 

 
Seek to foster a positive and ongoing relationship with town and parish councils 
throughout the neighbourhood planning process. 

 
 

Supporting the Designation of Neighbourhood Areas/Business Areas 
 
 

SKDC will: 
 

Where appropriate, meet local communities (either face to face or via electronic means) 
who contact us expressing an interest in neighbourhood planning, in order to provide 
initial advice and information and discuss options. Wherever possible, this should take 
place in advance of a Neighbourhood Area application being submitted. 
 
Check and confirm receipt of any neighbourhood area application it receives and advise 
the applying qualifying body of any requirements omitted. 
 
Map neighbourhood area boundaries required for the designation of the neighbourhood 
area or business area. 
 
Publicise, in accordance with the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, 
the application for a neighbourhood area or business area in a manner considered likely 
to bring the application to the attention of people who live, work or carry on business in 
the area to which the application relates. This includes through; SKDC’s website,  
 
Consider, in accordance with the Regulations, the boundary of the proposed 
neighbourhood area. Where the boundary is not considered ‘coherent, consistent and 
appropriate in planning terms, as set out in the Regulations, SKDC will work with the 

74



42 
 

town/parish council to come to a suitable resolution and a decision will be made at a 
scheduled meeting of the Council’s Cabinet. 
 
Determine the application within eight weeks where the application falls entirely within 
one planning authority area and relates to the whole area of the parish council, twenty 
weeks where the area straddles two local planning authorities and thirteen weeks in all 
other cases. 
 
Publish details of all adopted neighbourhood plan areas or business areas on SKDC’s 
website and through other appropriate means as soon as practicable following formal 
designation. 
 

 

Supporting the Preparation of Neighbourhood Development Plans 
 

SKDC will: 
 

Provide advice on which issues are considered to be relevant planning matters and thus, 
are suitable for inclusion in neighbourhood plans. 
 
Provide information on relevant European and national legislation and policies and 
adopted and emerging Local Plan policies with which any neighbourhood plan will need 
to be in general conformity. 
 
Share existing information and evidence base work held by the local planning authority 
as appropriate (subject to any data protection or confidentiality issues) and provide 
advice on any areas where new evidence may be required or beneficial to support the 
preparation of the Plan. 
 
Help communities communicate with local partners and/or organisations where 
required (subject to any data protection or confidentiality issues), including in the 
preliminary stages of neighbourhood plan making 
 
Provide constructive comments on the emerging plan and other supporting documents 
prior to formal submission. 

 
Carry out screening / scoping to identify and provide an opinion and advice on the need 
for a Strategic Environmental Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal or Habitats 
Regulations Assessment, except where consultants have been employed to prepare the 
neighbourhood plan. 

 
SKDC will not: 
 

Undertake consultation exercises, distribute consultation questionnaires, collect, collate 
or analyse responses on behalf of communities for consultation arising from 
requirements placed on qualifying bodies in the Regulations. 
 

75



43 
 

Provide project management services for the production of the neighbourhood plan. 
 
Draft the neighbourhood plan or any part or policy therein, although we can identify 
examples in which similar plans or policies have been prepared and which may be helpful 
points of reference and can provide advice on wording. 
 
Undertake the Strategic Environmental Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal, Habitats 
Regulations Assessment or Appropriate Assessment, even if these are required. 
Consultants will be expected to undertake these. 

 

Independent Examination 
 
SKDC will: 
 

Validate a neighbourhood plan on receipt, checking that all of the necessary supporting 
Review the plan to ensure that it is in general conformity with the Local Plan and offer 
comments and suggestions as appropriate. 
 
Publicise the neighbourhood plan on the Council’s website for a minimum of six weeks 
in line with the regulations. 

 
Appoint and fund the independent examiner, who will check that the plan meets the 
material considerations. The selection of examiner will be agreed with the relevant town 
or parish council. 
 
Provide an examination venue if a public hearing is required and there are no suitable 
venues within the NP area.  
 
Following the recommendations of the examiner, provide written confirmation of the 
Council’s position. This will cover any amendments that may need to be made to the 
plan before it proceeds to referendum and any extension of the referendum area 
beyond the designated neighbourhood area boundaries. 
 

 

Referendum 
 
SKDC will: 
 

Fund and organise the public referendum (two referendums will be required for 
business areas – one for residents and one for businesses 
 

 

Adoption 
 
SKDC will: 
 

If the neighbourhood plan receives support at referendum from more than 50% of those 

76



44 
 

that vote, then SKDC will formally adopt the neighbourhood plan and publish it on its 
website in accordance with the Regulations. 
 
Once adopted the Plan will form part of SKDC’s Development Plan. It will be a primary 
consideration in determining the outcome of planning applications relating to the 
neighbourhood or business area. 

 
Obligations for Town and Parish Councils 
 

In order to receive the support from SKDC outlined above, Town and Parish Councils 
should – Ensure that they get in touch with SKDC’s Development Plans Team at the 
earliest opportunity (for instance, as soon as any decision is made that neighbourhood 
planning might be considered for the area) and prior to any neighbourhood area 
application being made, to discuss the issues and approach being considered. This will 
enable SKDC to programme and plan their support work and help the qualifying body 
come to a decision on whether neighbourhood planning is for them or whether another 
option might be more effective and appropriate. 
 
Establish a steering group to develop the neighbourhood plan with a clear link to the 
parish council by way of an agreed Terms of Reference. 
 
Arrange an initial meeting of the parish council and/or steering group and invite relevant 
SKDC officers to attend (either through face to face or electronic means of 
communication dependant on circumstances).  
 
Prepare a project plan for the preparation of the neighbourhood plan, including an 
indicative timetable. Provide SKDC with regular progress updates, especially at any key 
stages and when any decisions are made that will influence the content, aims and 
objectives of the plan 
 
Seek to foster a positive and ongoing relationship with SKDC throughout the 
neighbourhood planning process, including discussions at key stages such as preparation 
of the draft plan. 
 
Provide SKDC with the final plan in electronic and paper format. 

 
Provide SKDC with the results of any primary research and evidence gathered that would 
be beneficial to them. 
 
Seek to accord fully at all times with the requirements in the relevant regulations and 
guidance for neighbourhood planning. 

 

  

77



45 
 

Appendix 6 Glossary and List of Abbreviations 
 
Glossary 

 
Conservation Area - areas of special architectural and/or historic interest, the character of 
appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance 
 
Development Plan Documents (DPDs) - They are spatial planning documents that are subject 
to independent examination. There is a right for those making representations seeking 
change to be heard at an independent examination 
 
Duty to Cooperate - created by the Localism Act 2011 it places a duty on local authorities to 
'engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis' with certain specified bodies to 
maximise the effectiveness of Local Plan preparation relating to strategic cross boundary 
issues 
 
Examination - the purpose of the Examination is to determine if the Local Plan is sound. Most 
representations to the Examination will be written representations but in some cases the 
Inspector may decide the issues raised should be dealt with at hearing sessions 
 
General Consultation Bodies - organisations defined by The Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 that are required to be consulted at key stages of 
plan production. They include bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic, 
religious or national groups, disabled persons and business in the LPA's area 
 
Hard to Reach Groups - Groups of people or organisations within the community that have 
traditionally been more difficult to engage in the planning system. They include older people, 
religious, disabled and ethnic minority groups 
 
Localism Act 2011 - Government legislation containing wide range of reforms to the planning 
system 
Local Development Scheme (LDS) - sets out the programme for the preparation of local 
development documents. 
 
Local Enterprise Partnership - local partnerships between local authorities and businesses set 
up to determine local economic priorities and undertake activities to drive economic growth 
and the creation of local jobs. There is a Greater Lincolnshire Local Economic Partnership 
 
Local Plan – The new term for the suite of Development Plan documents. It may consist of a 
single or number of Development Plan Documents 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – sets out the Governments planning policies. 
Replaces all previous Planning Policy Statements and associated Guidance 
 
Neighbourhood Development Plans - The Plans are prepared by a parish council or 
neighbourhood forum for a particular neighbourhood area (made under the Localism Act 
2011) and have to be in general conformity with the district plan, undergo Examination and a 

78



46 
 

Referendum. After adoption they are used (alongside other policy documents) to determine 
planning applications 
 
Planning Inspectorate (PINS) - an independent Government agency that processes planning 
and enforcement appeals and holds inquiries into development plan documents 
 
Specific Consultation Bodies - organisations defined by The Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 that are required to be consulted at key stages of plan 
production. They include neighbouring and parish councils, key service providers, 
Government departments and non-Government organisations 
 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) - sets out the standards which the plan-making 
authority intends to achieve in relation to involving the community in the preparation, 
alteration and continuing review of all planning policy documents and in development 
management decisions 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) - these cover a wide range of issues on which the 
plan making authority wishes to provide guidance to supplement the policies and proposals 
in development plan documents. They do not form part of the development plan and are not 
subject to independent examination 
 
Sustainability Appraisal (SA) - a tool for appraising policies to ensure they reflect sustainable 
development objectives (i.e. social, environmental and economic factors) 
 
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) - an Order made by a Council in respect of a tree(s) because 
the tree is considered to bring amenity value to the surrounding area. The order makes it an 
offence to cut down, uproot, prune, lop or damage the tree in question without first obtaining 
the Council’s consent. A TPO can apply to a single tree, a group of trees or a woodland 

 
 

79



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Statement of Community Involvement 

 

Changes to the Approved Statement of 

Community Involvement 

 

 

September 2021 

 

81



Appendix B 

1 
 

1. Proposed Changes to the Approved Statement of Community 

Involvement. 
 

1.1 This report details the proposed changes to the Statement of Community Involvement which 

was approved by Cabinet on 14th September 2021.  Table 1 includes the text of the SCI as 

approved, and the proposed changes.  The table also includes the reason for the change. 

 

Table 1 – Proposed Changes to the SCI Document 

 

• Red text denotes proposed additional text 

• Struck through text denotes proposed deleted text 

Page no. and 
Section 

Approved Statement of 
Community Involvement 

Proposed Changes to the 
Approved Statement of 
Community Involvement  

Reason for Change 

Page 11-12, 
paragraph 
15.4 

The preferred method of 
consultation response is by 
email, as this will help reduce 
the impact of Covid19 and 
supports the ability of the 
planning team to work 
remotely, it also enables 
those involved in the Local 
Plan to be regularly updated 
during current restrictions. 
The submission of 
representations on electronic 
forms will in turn facilitate 
the Examination process and 
support the work of the 
Planning Inspector. 

The preferred method of 
consultation response is by 
email, as this will help 
reduce the impact of 
Covid19 and supports the 
ability of the planning team 
to work remotely, it also 
enables those involved in 
the Local Plan to be 
regularly updated during 
current restrictions. The 
submission of 
representations on 
electronic forms will in turn 
facilitate the Examination 
process and support the 
work of the Planning 
Inspector. Traditional 
forms of representation 
such as letters or using 
paper copies of the 
Council’s consultation 
response forms, if relevant, 
will also be accepted.  
 

For clarity – to 
ensure 
consultations are 
accessible. 

Pages 12 and 
15, 
paragraph 
16.1 
(including 
table) 

Make copies of documents 
purchasable via request. (The 
cost of documents and 
postage will be in accordance 
with the Councils Schedule of 
Fees and Charges).  
 

Make copies of documents 
purchasable via request**. 
(The cost of documents 
and postage will be in 
accordance with the 
Councils Schedule of Fees 
and Charges).  
 
**  Documents requested 

For clarity – to 
ensure 
consultations are 
accessible. 

82



Appendix B 

2 
 

Page no. and 
Section 

Approved Statement of 
Community Involvement 

Proposed Changes to the 
Approved Statement of 
Community Involvement  

Reason for Change 

in an alternative format 
(due to a disability or 
language differential) will 
not be charged. 
 

Page 18, 
paragraph 
25.1 

If practicable to do so, all 
Ward Councillors will be 
notified of relevant 
applications within their 
area.  This will be done 
electronically as all 
applications are made 
available to view on the 
Council’s website, paper 
copies of applications are not 
normally provided to Ward 
Councillors. 
 

If practicable to do so, a All 
Ward Councillors will be 
notified of relevant 
applications within their 
area.  This will be done 
electronically as all 
applications are made 
available to view on the 
Council’s website, paper 
copies of applications are 
not normally provided to 
Ward Councillors. 
 

To confirm that all 
Ward Councillors 
will be notified of 
relevant planning 
applications within 
their area. 

Page 26, 
Appendix 1: 
Consultation 
Bodies 

Vulnerable and Shielded 
residents – Covid 19 
 
There are currently 
Government and local 
measures put in place to 
shield the most vulnerable 
residents in the county from 
the impact of Covid 19.  The 
Government have provided 
the council with information 
about those who are not 
currently able to leave their 
homes and may not therefore 
be able to engage with the 
Local Plan consultation in the 
usual ways.  The Council will 
therefore seek to proactively 
engage with those residents 
who are being shielded to 
support them in accessing 
and responding to 
consultations during the 
period of Covid 19 

 
Vulnerable and Shielded 
residents – Covid 19 
 
There are currently 
Government and local 
measures put in place to 
shield the most vulnerable 
residents in the county 
from the impact of Covid 
19.  The Government have 
provided the council with 
information about those 
who are not currently able 
to leave their homes and 
may not therefore be able 
to engage with the Local 
Plan consultation in the 
usual ways.  The Council will 
therefore seek to 
proactively engage with 
those residents who are 
being shielded to support 
them in accessing and 
responding to 
consultations during the 
period of Covid 19 
 
Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable – Covid 19 

Updated 
Government 
Guidance 

83



Appendix B 

3 
 

Page no. and 
Section 

Approved Statement of 
Community Involvement 

Proposed Changes to the 
Approved Statement of 
Community Involvement  

Reason for Change 

 
There are currently 
Government Covid-19 
guidelines in place to 
protect people defined on 
medical grounds as 
extremely vulnerable. The 
guidance advises those 
identified as “clinically 
extremely vulnerable” to 
meet outside, if possible, 
therefore, their ability to 
view consultation 
documents and make 
representations may be 
hindered.  As such the 
Council will therefore seek 
to proactively engage with 
those residents who are 
“Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable” to support 
them in accessing and 
responding to 
consultations during the 
period of Covid 19.  
Likewise, if shielding of the 
most vulnerable is resumed 
the Council will offer the 
same level of support. 
 

 

84



Appendix C 

1 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

SKDC – Statement of Community 
Involvement 2021 (SCI) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
 
Planning Policy  
Development and Growth 

Lead officer: 
 Jake Horton 

Date of Meeting  
 
24/08/21 Assessors: 

Shaza Brannon 
 

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

85



Appendix C 

2 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

The Statement of Community Involvement sets out how the Council will consult 
on planning policy documents (including the Local Plan), engage with and support 
neighbourhood planning, and consult on planning applications. 
The updated document has a greater emphasis on online consultation methods 
and removes the minimum consultation requirement to have libraries and council 
offices as deposit points. 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  Existing  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Removing the requirement for 
local authorities to place hard 
copies of consultations in public 
settings whilst increasing the 
reliance on technology to access 
and comment on planning policy 
documents could 
disproportionately impact older 
people who may be less likely to 
be online. In order to mitigate any 
negative impact the Council has 
the discretion to still deposit 
consultation documents at these 
points.  The Statement of 
Community Involvement also 
makes commitment to provide 
documents in alternative formats 
(for example, large print)  on 
request. Overall this would 
maintain the advancement of 
equality of opportunity.  

 

Disability 
 

 

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 

Removing the requirement for 
local authorities to place hard 
copies of consultations in public 

86



Appendix C 

3 

 

 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

settings whilst increasing the 
reliance on technology to access 
and comment on planning policy 
documents could 
disproportionately impact people 
with disabilities who are unable to 
access or use online platforms.  

The Statement of Community 
Involvement however makes a 
commitment to make reasonable 
adjustments for equalities 
purposes upon request. This 
would particularly benefit 
individuals with certain 
disabilities. Documents will be 
provided in alternative formats if 
required.  Overall the aim of this 
is to eliminate discrimination and 
advance equality of opportunity to 
respond to consultations.  

 

Race 
 

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

It is recognised that there may be 
challenges in engaging people 
whose first language is not 
English. To address this, the local 
plan consultation database has 
attempted to include the contact 
details for a range of different 
organisations representing 
different ethnicities who will be 
notified of any consultations. The 
Council is also committed to 
making reasonable adjustments 
to support equality of access 
therefore, relevant documents 
can be translated into other 
languages if required on request. 

 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 
increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 

87



Appendix C 

4 

 

Religion or 
Belief   

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 
increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 

Sex 
 
 
   

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 
increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 
 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 
increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 
 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 

88



Appendix C 

5 

 

increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 
 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 
increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 
 

Carers Positive (the document ensures 
that people can actively 
participate in consultations) 
 
Negative (increased utilisation of 
digital technology) 

Whilst there are no barriers to 
persons accessing the Statement 
of Community Involvement or any 
consultations for planning policy 
documents relating specifically to 
this protected characteristic it is 
acknowledged that the shift to 
increased reliance on digital 
technology to participate has the 
potential to impact on all people. 
 
Hard copies can be made 
available in accessible public 
settings on request. 
 
 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 

Positive The document makes a specific 
commitment to facilitate focused 
meetings with interest groups, 
organisations, and community 
advocates where there is 
demand. Overall the aim of this is 
to advance equality of opportunity 
to respond to planning 
consultations. 

89



Appendix C 

6 

 

General 
comments 

The Statement of Community Involvement has been drafted with 
equalities considerations as a corporate priority. The information 
contained applies to the public generally and are not intended to focus 
on any specific group. For plan-making the Council has committed to 
maintaining a mix of online and offline consultation methods (where 
appropriate in consideration to COVID 19 guidance) and to make 
reasonable adjustments for equalities requests in line with the general 
equality duty. In all cases and considering that planning issues can 
vary significantly depending on individual proposals, the general 
equality duty applies irrespective of the Statement of Community 
Involvement.   

 

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) under paragraph 16 states that - 
Plans should:  
 
“c) be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-
makers and communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure 
providers and operators and statutory consultees” 
 
It is a legislative requirement within section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 for all councils to have an up-to-date Statement of Community 
Involvement in place which prescribes who should be consulted, when 
consultations should take place, and how.  
 
The document is based on setting out consultation methods in accordance with 
Local Planning Regulations, Neighbourhood Planning Regulations and The Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure). These regulations 
provide the requirements for when it should happen and how it should take place.  
 
The regulations also set out defined stages of plan production, and lists 
individuals who need to be consulted known as ‘specific consultation bodies’. 
Furthermore, the Council has discretion to identify a number of other bodies 
representing certain interests known as ‘general consultation bodies’ and SKDC 
has therefore looked to broaden the scope as much as possible across the 
district.  
 
On 13th May 2020 the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) published temporary measures designed to make it easier to operate 
the planning system in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. These measures have 
been included within the updated SCI and include information such as how the 
council is still committed to consulting with those who may be “shielding” due to 
the pandemic. 
 

While there is no specific requirement to consult on the SCI itself, a 6 week public 
consultation on the draft revised SCI was undertaken between the 5th of February 
2021 and the 16th of March 2021.  The SCI consultation document was made 
available to view and access from the Council website A general notification of 

90



Appendix C 

7 

 

the consultation was sent out via email and letter to those on our consultation 
database, including town / parish councils, statutory bodies, and Ward Cllrs. The 
SCI has been refined, taking into account the comments made during the 
consultation.  

. 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

The Council is also committed to involving a wide range of other individuals 
including members of the public, local community voluntary groups, and hard to 
reach groups. SKDC is constantly monitoring its contact database and looking for 
ways in which to effectively improve constatations to have more effective 
communications with the Local Authority  

 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 

91



Appendix C 

8 

 

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Jake Horton 
(Name and title)   Planning Policy Officer  
  

Date completed:  24/08/21  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Senior Community Development Officer 
 

Date signed off:     27/08/21  
 

92



 

 

 

Cabinet 
12 October 2021 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

Cabinet Forward Plan for the period 4 October 2021 to 
3 September 2022 

This report highlights matters on the Cabinet’s Forward Plan for the period 4 October 2021 to  
3 September 2022. 
 

Report Author 

Shelley Thirkell (Acting Principal Democratic Officer) 

Tel: 01476 406156 

Email: shelley.thirkell@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Governance All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Graham Watts (Head of Democratic Services) 28 September 2021 

Approved by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 28 September 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke (The Leader of the Council) 01 October 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of this report. 

93

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

 
1.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirements for publicity in connection 

with Key Decisions. The Council meets these legislative requirements through the monthly 

publication of its Forward Plan. 

1.2 Cabinet may also receive reports on which it is asked to make recommendations to 

Council or review the contents and take necessary action. These items are also listed on 

the Forward Plan. 

1.3 To help Cabinet understand what issues will be put before it in the longer-term, items for 

consideration during the preceding year have been included in the Cabinet’s Forward 

Plan. The Forward Plan also includes details of items scheduled for each of the Council 

meetings due to be held within the plan period. 

1.4 The Forward Plan for 4 October 2021 to 3 September 2022, is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

94



Appendix 1 

 

 
CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet  
4 October 2021 to 23 September 2022 

 
At its meetings, the Cabinet may make Key Decisions and Non-Key Decisions. It may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework. 
 
A Key Decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely: 
 
1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to 

the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (for these purposes, South Kesteven 
District Council has agreed £200,000 as the threshold at which a decision will be considered significant); or 

 
2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards. 
 
A Non-Key Decision is one that is not a Key Decision. 
 
The Forward Plan 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council. 
 

95



 
Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council  
 

Summary Date Action Contact 

Health and Safety Policy 2021-23 - Key Decision 

To report on and agree the Council’s Health 
and Safety Policy for 2021-23. 

9 
November 
2021 
 

To approve. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing & Property) 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Compensation Policy - Key Decision 

The purpose of the report is to seek 
approval for the adoption of a 
compensation policy to be used across 
Housing Technical Services and Housing 
Services.  

9 
November 
2021 

To approve. 
 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing & Property) 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Stamford North Memorandum of Cooperation - Key Decision 

The Stamford North Memorandum of 
Understanding sets out the governance 
arrangements between South Kesteven 
District and Rutland County Council to bring 
forward the comprehensive development of 
the Stamford North Sustainable Urban 
Extension. The report and recommendation 
will be to approve and sign the MoC by the 
Council and formalise a governance 
structure. 
 
 
 
 
 

9 
November 
2021 
 

To approve. 
 
 

Cabinet Member for Planning & Planning Policy 
(Councillor Nick Robins) 
 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and 
Culture) 
E-mail: Nicola.mccoy-brown@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk   

96

mailto:andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Contact 

Rectory Farm - Development Brief - Key Decision 

To consider the Rectory Farm 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following consultation on a draft document 
 

9 
November 
2021 
 

To approve a Supplementary 
Planning Document in 
respect to Rectory Farm. 
 

Cabinet Member for Planning & Planning Policy 
(Councillor Nick Robins) 
 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and 
Culture) 
E-mail: Nicola.mccoy-brown@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Proposed Development brief for Land at Stamford North - Key Decision 

To consider the proposed development 
brief for land at Stamford North prior to 
consultation 
 

9 
November 
2021 
 

To approve the draft 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of land 
at Stamford North for 
consultation. 
 

Cabinet Member for Planning & Planning Policy 
(Councillor Nick Robins) 
 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and 
Culture) 
E-mail: Nicola.mccoy-brown@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document - Final - Key Decision 

To consider the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following public consultation 
 

9 
November 
2021 
 

To approve the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning 
Document. 
 

Cabinet Member for Planning & Planning Policy 
(Councillor Nick Robins) 
 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and 
Culture) 
E-mail: Nicola.mccoy-brown@ 
southkesteven.gov.uk    
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

97



Summary Date Action Contact 

Council Tax Base 2022/23 - Key Decision 

To determine the Council Tax base to form 
the basis of the 2022/23 budget proposals 
to be recommended to Council  
 

7 
December 
2021 
 

To agree the Council Tax 
base 2022/23 which will form 
the basis of the budget 
proposals for the year. 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources 
(Councillor Adam Stokes) 
 
Richard Wyles, (Assistant Director of Finance, 
Section 151 Officer) 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Draft Budget Proposals for 2022/23 - Key Decision 

To consider draft budget proposals for 
2022/23 
 

7 
December 
2021 
 

To agree draft budget 
proposals for 2022/23 for 
consultation. 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources 
(Councillor Adam Stokes) 
 
Richard Wyles, (Assistant Director of Finance, 
Section 151 Officer) 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Voids Policy - Key Decision 

The policy details South Kesteven District 
Councils approach to managing void 
properties 
 

13 January 
2022 
 

To approve the policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing & Property) 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Housing Asset Management Strategy 2021-2026 - Key Decision 

To consider the strategy 
 

June 2022 
 

To adopt a Housing Asset 
management Strategy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton (Director of Housing & Property) 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

98

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting 14 September 2021
	3b Exempt minute of the meeting held on 14 September 2021
	4 Bourne Special Expense Area
	Appendix A (i) - Land Registry Plans (Bourne Recreation Ground)
	Appendix A (ii) - Land Registry Plans (Dyke Playing Field)

	5 Statement of Community Involvement 2021
	Appendix A – Statement of Community Involvement (2021) including proposed modifications
	Appendix B - Changes to the approved Statement of Community Involvement
	Appendix C – Equalities Impact Assessment

	8 Cabinet Forward Plan
	Appendix1 - Cabinet Forward Plan, 4 October 2021 - 3 September 2022


